
AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, 8 March 2017 at 7.30 pm 

Council Chamber - Civic Centre 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions   
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 Councillors’ declarations of interest (if any) in relation to any matters on 

the agenda. 
 

3. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
 To agree the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 November 2016. 

 
4. Matters Arising  
 
 (a) Internal Audit Activity Report (Page 7) 

(Minute 36 Refers) 
 
The Head of Housing has provided a written response to explain 
the delay in implementing recommendations for the Corporate 
Business Continuity Plan. 
 

(b) Other Matters Arising 
 

5. Written Questions and Petitions   
 
6. Non Contentious Business   
 
7. Committee Work Plan and Training Programme 2017/18  (Pages 8 - 9) 
 
8. Harlow Council Audit Plan 2016-17  (Pages 10 - 29) 
 
9. Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report 2015-16  (Pages 30 - 

37) 
 
10. Review of Audit & Standards Committee Terms of Reference  (Pages 38 

- 46) 
 
11. External Quality Assurance of Internal Audit Against the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)  (Pages 47 - 73) 
 
12. Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2017/18  (Pages 74 - 91) 
 
13. Internal Audit Activity Report  (Pages 92 - 122) 
 

Public Document Pack



14. Risk Management Progress Report  (Pages 123 - 129) 
 
15. References from other Committees   
 
 Any references arising from meetings held after the publication of this 

agenda will be circulated separately. 
 

16. Matters of Urgent Business   
 
 Such other business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be 

considered as a matter of urgency by reason of special circumstances to 
be specified in the minutes. 
 
 



 

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

HELD ON 

 

23 November 2016 7.30pm  - 9.10pm 
 

 

PRESENT 

 

Committee Members 
Councillor Karen Clempner (Chairman) 
Councillor Ian Beckett (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Simon Carter 
Councillor Jean Clark 
Councillor Mark Ingall 
Councillor Eddie Johnson 
Councillor Stefan Mullard 
 

 
Officers 

Simon Freeman, Head of Finance 
Sarah Marsh, Internal Audit Manager 
Sue Linsley, Senior Auditor, EFDC (observer) 
Jo Maskell, Governance Support Officer 
 
External Auditor 

Stephen Bladen, Ernst & Young 
 

 
APOLOGIES  
Councillor Edna Stevens 
 
 
27. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
Councillor Simon Carter declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 
11 (Internal Audit Activity Report) as he was a Council-appointed director 
of HTS (Property and Environment) Ltd. 
 

28. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 
2016 are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
29. MATTERS ARISING  

 
None. 
 

30. WRITTEN QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  

 
None. 

Public Document Pack

3

Agenda Item 3



31. NON CONTENTIOUS BUSINESS  

 
RESOLVED that the no items are taken as non-contentious 
business. 

 
32. COMMITTEE WORK PLAN  

 
The Committee received its current work plan. 
 

RESOLVED that the work plan is noted. 
 

33. ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2015/16  

 
The Committee received a report which outlined the key messages from 
the Annual Audit Letter from Ernst & Young.  The Letter was presented by 
the external auditor and summarised their findings on the audit work they 
had carried out at the Council during 2015/16.  
 
They had issued an unqualified opinion on the Council’s accounts and had 
no significant issues to report.  
 
It was noted that the Council had measures in place to meet the new 
deadline for financial statements, which was being introduced from 
2017/18.  Financial statements would need to be produced by the end of 
May, which was a month earlier than the current end of June deadline. 
 

RESOLVED that the Annual Audit Letter for 2015/16 and the key 
issues identified regarding the audit opinion, financial statements 
and key challenges are acknowledged.  

 
34. AUDITORS APPOINTMENT  

 
Following the Government’s announcement for new arrangements for 
auditing England’s local public bodies, the Committee received a report, 
setting out the options for the appointment of its auditors.  It was proposed 
that the Council participated in the national procurement process, in order 
to appoint an external auditor for the 2018/19 financial year (once the 
current contract with Ernst & Young had finalised).   
 
 RECOMMENDED to COUNCIL that 
 

(a) Harlow Council participates in the national procurement 
process led by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 
(PSAA) for the appointment of its external auditors; 

 
(b) delegated authority be granted to the Head of Finance, as 

the Council’s statutory officer under Section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, to give formal notice of the Council’s 
intention to opt into the PSAA procurement exercise. 

 

4



35. REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ITS 

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

 
The Committee received a report on the review of the effectiveness of the 
audit function of the Audit & Standards Committee, which included an 
action plan for minor improvements and a suggestion to review the 
Committee’s Terms of Reference. 
 
 RESOLVED that  
 

(a) the self-assessment results, which show that Harlow Council 
is compliant with recommended best practice for an effective 
audit committee, are approved; 

 
(b) the action plan, as contained within the report, is approved; 
 
(c) a review of the Committee’s Terms of Reference are 

reported to the March meeting of this Committee. 
 

36. INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY REPORT  

 
The Committee received the Internal Audit Activity Report which showed 
the progress made to date against the 2016/17 Audit Plan. 
 
Whilst it was gratifying to note that since September 2016 the number of 
recommendations in the tracker which had passed their due date had 
reduced, the Committee was concerned about the significant delay in 
implementing some of the remaining outstanding recommendations.  
 
In particular, the implementation of The Water Gardens Car Park and the 
Corporate Business Continuity Plan recommendations were highlighted as 
having been unacceptably delayed.  
 
 RESOLVED that 
 

(a) the report is noted; 
 
(b) should a satisfactory explanation for the delay in the 

implementation of Tracker Recommendations 1, 3, 4 and 5 
not be received , then the Head of Place and the Head of 
Housing be invited to the next meeting of this Committee for 
an explanation of the delay into The Water Gardens and 
Corporate Business Continuity Plan respectively. 

 
37. ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY  

 
The Committee received a report proposing revisions to the Anti-Fraud 
and Corruption Strategy. 
 

5



It was noted that the Corporate Governance Group would develop, 
implement and monitor a Fraud Action Plan, which would support the Anti-
Fraud and Corruption Strategy.   
 

RECOMMENDED that the revised Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Strategy be approved.  

 
38. RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT  

 
The Committee received report on the Corporate Risk Register, with CR04 
being specifically reviewed. 
 

RESOLVED that the Risk Management Report, including the 
highlighted review of CR04, is noted. 

 
39. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  

 
None. 
 

40. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE 

 

6



 
 
 
 
Agenda item 4a refers 
 
Housing services have an existing Business Continuity Plan (BCP) with clearly 
defined lines of responsibility and escalation, linking to corporate arrangements. 
This has worked well and major incidents have been manged effectively. 
 
Revising the housing BCP to new corporate templates has taken longer than 
initially planned due resourcing constraints and corporate priority to ensure there 
was a seamless transition to the new local authority trading company (HTS 
Property and Environment Ltd). Workshops have been completed in February for 
housing for all areas of business in order to transfer to the revised corporate 
requirements. It is intended that separate BCP’s will be implemented for each 
service whilst being kept under one housing BCP document. Updated service 
level business impact analysis has been completed to identify critical functions 
service locations, vital resources, impact of business functions and contingency 
arrangements for their service. It is expected that revised plans are due to be 
completed by end of March 2017. 

 
AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE – 8 MARCH 2017 

RESPONSE FROM THE HEAD OF HOUSING 
 

7

Agenda Item 4



AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 
2017/18 

 

   

July 2017  
o Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 Simon Freeman 

 
o Internal Audit Annual Report 2016/17 Sarah Marsh 

 
o Audit & Standards Committee Annual 

Report 
Sarah Marsh 
 
 

o Period 2 IA Activity Report 2017/18 Sarah Marsh 
 

o Risk Management Progress Report 
2017/18 

Simon Freeman 
 
 

September 2017  
o Audited Annual Accounts 2016/17 

(including Annual Governance Statement) 
Simon Freeman 
 
 

o Management Letter of Representation 
2016/17 

Ernst & Young 
 
 

o External Auditors Audit Results Report 
2016/17 (ISA 260) 

Ernst & Young 
 
 

o Period 5 IA Activity Report 2017/18 Sarah Marsh 
 

o Risk Management Progress Report 
2017/18 

Simon Freeman 
 
 

November 2017  
o Period 8 IA Activity Report 2017/18 Sarah Marsh 

 
o Annual Audit Letter 2016/17 Ernst & Young 

 
o Review of Audit & Standards Committee 

Effectiveness and Terms of Reference 
Sarah Marsh 
 
 

o Risk Management Progress 201718 Simon Freeman 
 

March 2018  
o Period 11 IA Activity Report 2017/18 Sarah Marsh 

 
o Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2018/19 Sarah Marsh 

 
o Review of Internal Audit Charter Sarah Marsh 

 
o External Auditor – Audit Plan 2017/18 

(Accounts closure and VFM) 
Ernst & Young 
 
 

8

Agenda Item 7



AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 
2017/18 

 

   

o Annual Report on the Certification of Grant 
Claims and Returns (including fees) 

Ernst & Young 
 
 

o Internal Audit Compliance with the Public 
Standards Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS) Annual Report 

Sarah Marsh 
 
 
 

o Audit & Standards Committee Work Plan 
and Training Programme 2018/19 

Simon Freeman 
 
 

o Risk Management Progress Report 
2017/18 

Simon Freeman 
 
 

Standing Items  
o Register of Complaints which have been 

referred to Hearing Sub-Committee  
Monitoring Officer 
 
 

Unallocated Items  
o There are none   

 
 

9



 

Ernst & Young LLP

 

Harlow Council 
Year ending 31 March 2017 

Audit Plan 

23 February 2017 

 

10

Agenda Item 8



The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.  
A list of members’ names is available for inspection at 1 More London Place, London  

SE1 2AF, the firm’s principal place of business and registered office. 
 

 

 

 
Audit and Standards Committee 
Harlow Council 
Civic Centre 
The Water Gardens 
Harlow 

Essex CM20 1WG 

23 February 2017 

Dear Members  

2016/17 Audit Plan 

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as 
auditor. Its purpose is to provide the Audit and Standards Committee with a basis to review our proposed 
audit approach and scope for the 2016/17 audit in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of 
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other 
professional requirements. It is also to ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service 
expectations. 

This Plan summarises our preliminary assessment of the key risks driving the development of an 
effective audit for the Council, and outlines our planned audit strategy in response to those risks.  Where 
relevant, if our risk assessment changes, we will present you with an update of our Audit Plan at a 
subsequent meeting when our detailed planning procedures have been completed, and our interim 
planning work has been performed. 

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this Audit Plan with you on 8 March 2017 and to understand 
whether there are other matters which you consider may influence our audit. 

Yours faithfully 

Suresh Patel 
Executive Director 
For and behalf of Ernst & Young LLP 
Enc 
 
 

Ernst & Young LLP 
400 Capability Green 
Luton 
Bedfordshire LU1 3LU 

 Tel: + 44 1582 643 000 
Fax: + 44 1582 643 001 
ey.com 
 
 

  Tel: 023 8038 2000 
Fax: 023 8038 2001 
www.ey.com/uk 
 
 

 

11



Contents 

EY  i 

Contents 

1. Overview .......................................................................................................................... 1 

2. Financial statement risks ............................................................................................... 2 

3. Value for money risks ..................................................................................................... 5 

4. Our audit process and strategy ..................................................................................... 6 

5. Independence ................................................................................................................ 11 

Appendix A Fees .............................................................................................................. 14 

Appendix B UK required communications with those charged with governance .... 15 
 

In April 2015 Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued ‘‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and 
audited bodies 2015-16’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA website 
(www.psaa.co.uk) 

The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited 
bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is 
to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 

The ‘Terms of Appointment from 1 April 2015’ issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must 
comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and statute, 
and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature. 

This Audit Plan is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Audit and 
Standards Committee, and is prepared for the sole use of the audited body. We, as appointed auditor, take no 
responsibility to any third party. 

Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be 
improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual 
partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner, 1 
More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all 
we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of 
course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact 
our professional institute. 

 

12

http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/pages/default.aspx


Overview 

EY  1 

1. Overview 

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with: 

► Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Harlow Council give a true and 
fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2017 and of the income and expenditure 
for the year then ended; and 

► Our conclusion on the Council’ arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness. 

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the 
form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts return.  

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in 
accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards. 

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs: 

► Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements; 

► Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards; 

► The quality of systems and processes; 

► Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and, 

► Management’s views on all of the above. 

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is 
more likely to be relevant to the Council. 

 
Changes in our audit scope 
 
The Council has determined that it will need to prepare group accounts for the first time in 
2016/17 to reflect the consolidation of its wholly owned subsidiary HTS Group Limited which 
incorporates Harlow Trading Services (Property & Environment) Ltd the new company set up 
by the Council to provide a range of environmental and property maintenance services. 
Providing an opinion on the group accounts will require additional audit procedures as set out 
in section 2 and an additional audit fee. 
 
We will provide an update to the Audit and Standards Committee on the results of our work in 
these areas in our report to those charged with governance scheduled for delivery in 
September 2017. 

13



Financial statement risks 

EY  2 

2. Financial statement risks 

We outline below our current assessment of the financial statement risks facing the Council, 
identified through our knowledge of the Council’s operations and discussion with those 
charged with governance and officers. We seek to validate these with you. 

Following completion of our detailed planning and interim audit procedures we will consider if 
any revisions are required to our identified risk assessment and provide you with an update. 

Significant risks (including fraud risks) Our audit approach 

Risk of fraud in revenue recognition 

Under ISA240 there is a presumed risk that revenue 
may be misstated due to improper recognition of 
revenue. 

In the public sector, this requirement is modified by 
Practice Note 10, issued by the Financial Reporting 
Council, which states that auditors should also consider 
the risk that material misstatements may occur by the 
manipulation of expenditure recognition.   

 

We will: 

► Review and test revenue and expenditure 
recognition policies. 

► Review and discuss with management any 
accounting estimates on revenue or expenditure 
recognition for evidence of bias. 

► Develop a testing strategy to test material revenue 
and expenditure streams. 

► Review and test revenue cut-off at the period end 
date. 

 

Risk of management override 

As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, management 
is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its 
ability to manipulate accounting records directly or 
indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by 
overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating 
effectively. We identify and respond to this fraud risk on 
every audit engagement. 

For local authorities the potential for the incorrect 
classification of revenue spend as capital is a particular 
area where there is a risk of revenue recognition. We will 
undertake specific testing to address this risk. 

 

Our approach will be to:  

► Test the appropriateness of journal entries recorded 
in the general ledger and other adjustments made in 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

► Review accounting estimates for evidence of 
management bias. 

► Evaluate the business rationale for significant 
unusual transactions. 

► Test capital expenditure on property, plant and 
equipment to ensure it meets the definition of capital 
expenditure as set out in the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
(the Code). 

  

Other financial statement risks 

Group accounts 

The Council has determined that it will consolidate into 
the 2016/17 accounts its wholly owned subsidiary HTS 
Group Limited which incorporates Harlow Trading 
Services. 

Whilst the number of transactions in 2016/17 is expected 
to be small, the value of transactions particularly in 
relating to the balance sheet is expected to be material. 

The Council will need to consider the consolidation of 
the subsidiary, including the elimination of inter-group 
transactions and consolidation adjustments required to 
align accounting policy differences. 

The Council will also need to ensure that the accounts 
reflect the disclosure requirements for group accounts. 

Our focus will be on:  

► Understanding the process for consolidating the 
subsidiary company. 

► Understanding the transactions undertaken between 
the two entities and testing that appropriate 
accounting entries have been made to eliminate 
inter-group transactions. 

► Understanding and testing differences in accounting 
policies, ensuring that the appropriate adjustments 
are made on consolidation to align accounting 
policies set for the group. 

► Reviewing the disclosures in the group accounts to 
ensure that they are materially accurate and 
complete. 

Financial statements presentation – Expenditure and Funding Analysis and Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

Amendments have been made to the Code this year 
changing the way the financial statements are 
presented. 

The new reporting requirements impact the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

Our approach will focus on: 

► Reviewing the expenditure and funding analysis, 
CIES and new notes to ensure disclosures are in 
line with the Code. 

14



Financial statement risks 

EY  3 

(CIES) and the Movement in Reserves Statement 
(MiRS), and include the introduction of the new 
‘Expenditure and Funding Analysis’ note as a result of 
the ‘Telling the Story’ review of the presentation of local 
authority financial statements. 

The Code no longer requires statements or notes to be 
prepared in accordance with SeRCOP. Instead the Code 
requires that the services analysis is based on the 
organisational structure under which eh authority 
operates. We expect this to show the Council’s 
segmental analysis. 

The change in the Code will require a new structure for 
the primary statements, new notes and a full 
retrospective restatement of impacted primary 
statements. The restatement of the 2015/16 
comparatives will require audit review, which could 
potentially incur additional costs, depending on the 
complexity and manner in which the changes are made. 

► Reviewing the analysis of how these figures are 
derived, how the ledger systems have been re-
mapped to reflect the Council’s organisational 
structure and how overheads are apportioned across 
the service areas reported. 

► Agreeing restated comparative figures back to the 
Council’s segmental analysis and supporting 
working papers. 

We understand that the finance team has carried out this 
work prior to year-end to enable us to audit this as part 
of our interim work. 

Classification and valuation of investment property and property, plant & equipment 

The Council undertakes an annual exercise to revalue 
property assets (including its social housing stock and 
investment property assets) on a rolling basis. The 
valuation of property assets represents a significant 
accounting estimate. The accounting entries arising from 
changes in value are complex and will have a significant 
impact on the Council’s financial statements.  

We have previously reported that the Council’s Fixed 
Asset Register is unable to calculate the accounting 
entries arising from changes in the valuation of these 
assets. The Council relies on excel-based spreadsheets 
to manually calculate the accounting entries, using data 
provided by the Council’s valuer and historic data 
recorded on the Council’s Fixed Asset Register. The 
manual intervention increases the risk of error. 

 

Our approach will be to:  

► Assess the reliability of management’s experts by 
drawing on experts commissioned by the National 
Audit Office and our own valuation specialists. 

► Test the reliability of the information provided by the 
Council to valuers. 

► Test the accounting treatment applied to changes in 
the valuation of property assets. 

► Test the classification of property assets within the 
balance sheet, ensuring that the classification is 
consistent with the Code.  

 

Pension Liability  

The Council operates a defined benefits pension 
scheme. Accounting for this scheme involves estimation 
and judgement. The pension liability is the largest 
balance on the balance sheet. 

We will obtain an understanding and evaluate key 
controls over the valuation of the pension liability. 

We will consider: 

► The expertise of the Actuary used by the Council. 

► The reasonableness of the estimations and 
judgements used. 

► The completeness and accuracy of the data 
provided by the Council to the Actuary. 

 

2.1 Responsibilities in respect of fraud and error 

We would like to take this opportunity to remind you that management has the primary 
responsibility to prevent and detect fraud. It is important that management, with the oversight 
of those charged with governance, has a culture of ethical behaviour and a strong control 
environment that both deters and prevents fraud. 

Our responsibility is to plan and perform audits to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free of material misstatements whether 
caused by error or fraud. As auditors, we approach each engagement with a questioning 
mind that accepts the possibility that a material misstatement due to fraud could occur, and 
design the appropriate procedures to consider such risk. 

Based on the requirements of auditing standards our approach will focus on: 

► Identifying fraud risks during the planning stages; 

► Enquiry of management about risks of fraud and the controls to address those risks; 

15



Financial statement risks 

EY  4 

► Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance of management’s 
processes over fraud; 

► Consideration of the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk 
of fraud; 

► Determining an appropriate strategy to address any identified risks of fraud, and, 

► Performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified risks. 

 

16



Value for money risks 

EY  5 

3. Value for money risks 

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.  For 2016/17 this is 
based on the overall evaluation criterion: 
 
“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took 
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable 
outcomes for taxpayers and local people”. 

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. 
They comprise your arrangements to: 

 Take informed decisions; 

 Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and 

 Work with partners and other third parties. 

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the 
CIPFA/SOLACE framework for local government to ensure that our assessment is made 
against a framework that you are already required to have in place and to report on through 
documents such as your annual governance statement. 

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, 
which the Code of Audit Practice which defines as: 

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that 
the matter would be of interest to the audited body or the wider public.” 

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe 
conclusion on arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the 
nature and extent of further work that may be required. If we do not identify any significant 
risks there is no requirement to carry out further work.  

Our risk assessment considers both the potential financial impact of the issues we have 
identified, and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the 
Government and other stakeholders. Our work to date, which is still in progress, has not 
identified any risks which we view as relevant to our value for money conclusion.  We update 
our risk assessment throughout our audit, and will update you on any changes to that 
assessment. 

 

17



Our audit process and strategy 

EY  6 

4. Our audit process and strategy 

4.1 Objective and scope of our audit 

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the 
Council’s: 

► Financial statements; and 

► Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 
to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code. 

We issue an audit report that covers: 

1. Financial statement audit  

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards 
on Auditing (UK and Ireland).  

We report to you by exception in respect of your governance statement and other 
accompanying material as required, in accordance with relevant guidance prepared by the 
NAO on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General. 

Alongside our audit report, we also review and report to the NAO on the Whole of 
Government Accounts return to the extent and in the form they require. 

We have been engaged by HTS Group Limited as their statutory audit and are currently 
agreeing formal terms of engagement. As a result, we can complete the additional audit 
procedures required under auditing standards on a group audit in an efficient and effective 
manner. 

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value 
for money) 

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. 

4.2 Audit process overview  

Processes 

Our audit involves: 

► Understanding and evaluating key internal controls where we have identified significant 
risks; 

► Reviewing work of Internal Audit where appropriate, to inform the identification of risk and 
our work on the Annual Governance Statement; 

► Reliance on the work of valuation experts in relation to areas such as pensions, property, 
the NDR appeals provision, and financial instruments; and 

► Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts. 

Analytics 

We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of 
your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools: 

18



Our audit process and strategy 

EY  7 

► Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more 
traditional substantive audit tests. 

► Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques. 

Internal audit 

As in prior years, we will review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will 
reflect the findings from these reports, together with reports from any other work completed in 
the year, in our detailed audit planning, where they identify issues that could impact on the 
Council’s year-end financial statements. 

Use of specialists 

When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice 
provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the core audit 
team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year 
audit are: 

Area Specialists 

Property valuations Management’s expert (District Valuer, and  Wilks Head & Eve) 

Pension fund liability Management’s expert (pension fund actuary); EY’s pension team.  

Fair value of short and long-term 
borrowings 

Management’s expert (Arlingclose) 

Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) Appeals 
Provision 

Management’s expert (Wilks, Head and Eve) 

 

In accordance with auditing standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional 
competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and available 
resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work. 

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the 
Council environment and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular area. 
For example, we would typically perform the following procedures: 

► Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the expert to 
establish whether the source date is relevant and reliable; 

► Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used;  

► Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; 
and 

► Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the 
financial statements. 

  

19



Our audit process and strategy 

EY  8 

4.3 Mandatory audit procedures required by auditing standards 
and the Code 

As well as the financial statement risks (section two) and value for money risks (section 
three), we must perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence 
standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we will 
undertake during the course of our audit. 

Procedures required by standards 

► Addressing the risk of fraud and error; 

► Significant disclosures included in the financial statements; 

► Entity-wide controls; 

► Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it 
is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and 

► Auditor independence. 

Procedures required by the Code 

► Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the 
financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement. 

► Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the 
instructions issued by the NAO  

Finally, we are also required to discharge our statutory duties and responsibilities as 
established by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 

4.4 Materiality 

For the purposes of determining whether the financial statements are free from material error, 
we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in 
aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the users of the financial statements. 
Our evaluation requires professional judgement and so takes into account qualitative as well 
as quantitative considerations implied in the definition.  

We have determined that overall materiality for the financial statements of the Council is 
£3.225 million based on 2% of gross expenditure. We will communicate uncorrected audit 
misstatements greater than £161,000. 

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial 
determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all the circumstances that 
might ultimately influence our judgement. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion 
by reference to all matters that could be significant to users of the financial statements, 
including the total effect of any audit misstatements, and our final evaluation of materiality. 

4.5 How materiality applied to the component locations 

The financial year ended 31 March 2017 will be the first year that the Council prepares group 
accounts. As such, we determine component materiality as a percentage of group materiality 
based on risk and relative size to the Group. 

We understand that management are currently determining how the consolidation of the HTS 
Group Limited will impact the group accounts. Once there is greater clarity on this and the 
relevant accounting transactions we will review the determination of the component 
materiality and communicate this to you at a later date. 

20



Our audit process and strategy 

EY  9 

4.6 Fees 

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to PSAA by the Secretary of State 
for Communities and Local Government. PSAA has published a scale fee for all relevant 
bodies. This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under 
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the NAO Code. The indicative 
scale fee for the audit of Harlow District Council is £77,514.  

The indicative scale fee does not take into account any additional work that may be required 
as a result of: 

► Audit procedures required for the group accounts – since we have been engaged to 
audit HTS Group Limited the additional audit fee we propose is £2,000. 

► Amendments to the Code changing the way the financial statements are presented. 
Management are currently evaluating the extent of the change to the Council. Once 
this has been completed we will consider the additional audit procedures required to 
audit the restatement and propose a fee for the completion of the work. 

4.7 Your audit team 

We have made some changes to your engagement team to increase our capacity to provide 
effective client service and work with your team to deliver the audit in a shorted period of 
time, in advance of the earlier deadlines for 2017/18. 

Suresh Patel now leads the engagement team. He is an Executive Director with significant 
experience of auditing local authorities. Suresh is supported by Julie Kriek, a Manager with 
significant experience from a career with the Auditor General of South Africa. Julie will be 
responsible for the day-to-day direction of audit work and is the key point of contact for the 
Council’s finance team. 

Debbie Hanson and Stephen Bladen (your previous senior management team) have been 
working with Suresh and Julie, to aid a smooth transition and handover. 

4.8 Timetable of communication, deliverables and insights  

We have set out below a timetable showing the key stages of the audit, including the value 
for money work and the Whole of Government Accounts. The timetable includes the 
deliverables we have agreed to provide to the Council through the Audit and Standards 
Committee’s cycle in 2016/17. These dates are determined to ensure our alignment with 
PSAA’s rolling calendar of deadlines. 

From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Audit 
and Standards Committee and we will discuss them with the Chair as appropriate. 

Following the conclusion of our audit we will prepare an Annual Audit Letter to communicate 
the key issues arising from our work to the Council and external stakeholders, including 
members of the public.  

  

21



Our audit process and strategy 

EY  10 

Auditing timetable 

Audit phase Timetable 

Audit and 
Standards 
Committee 
timetable Deliverables 

High level planning April 2016 

February 2017 

-  

08 March 2017 

Audit Fee Letter 

Audit Plan 

Risk assessment and 
setting of scopes 

February – March 
2017 

June 2017 

(TBC) 

Progress Report 

Testing routine 
processes  

February – March 
2017 

June 2017 

(TBC) 

Progress Report 

Year-end audit June – July 2017 September 2017 

(TBC) 

 

Completion of audit September 2017 September 2017 
(TBC) 

Report to those charged with governance via the 
Audit Results Report. 

Audit report (including our opinion on the 
financial statements and overall value for money 
conclusion). 

Audit completion certificate 

Reporting to the NAO on the Whole of 
Government Accounts return. 

Conclusion of 
reporting 

October 2017 TBC Annual Audit Letter 

Certification work September – 
November 2017 

November 2017 
(TBC) 

Annual certification report. 

 
In addition to the above formal reporting and deliverables we will seek to provide practical 
business insights and updates on regulatory matters. 

22



Independence 

EY  11 

5. Independence 

5.1 Introduction  

The APB Ethical Standards and ISA (UK and Ireland) 260 ‘Communication of audit matters 
with those charged with governance’, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis 
on all significant facts and matters that bear on our independence and objectivity. The Ethical 
Standards, as revised in December 2010, require that we do this formally both at the planning 
stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the audit if appropriate. The aim of 
these communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your 
governance on matters in which you have an interest. 

Required communications 

Planning stage Final stage 

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and 
independence identified by EY including 
consideration of all relationships between you, your 
affiliates and directors and us; 

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they 
are considered to be effective, including any 
Engagement Quality Review; 

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards; 

► Information about the general policies and process 
within EY to maintain objectivity and independence. 

► A written disclosure of relationships (including the 
provision of non-audit services) that bear on our 
objectivity and independence, the threats to our 
independence that these create, any safeguards that 
we have put in place and why they address such 
threats, together with any other information 
necessary to enable our objectivity and 
independence to be assessed; 

► Details of non-audit services provided and the fees 
charged in relation thereto; 

► Written confirmation that we are independent; 

► Details of any inconsistencies between APB Ethical 
Standards, the Audit Commission’s Standing 
Guidance and your policy for the supply of non-audit 
services by EY and any apparent breach of that 
policy; and 

► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence 
issues. 

 
During the course of the audit we must also communicate with you whenever any significant 
judgements are made about threats to objectivity and independence and the appropriateness 
of our safeguards, for example when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services. 

We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements, the amounts of any future 
contracted services, and details of any written proposal to provide non-audit services; 

We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you 
and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period are disclosed in 
appropriate categories. 

5.2 Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards  

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to 
bear upon our objectivity and independence, including any principal threats. However we 
have adopted the safeguards below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they 
are considered to be effective. 

Self-interest threats 

A self-interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in your entity. Examples 
include where we have an investment in your entity; where we receive significant fees in 
respect of non-audit services; where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we 
enter into a business relationship with the Council.  

At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees.  

23



Independence 

EY  12 

We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services, and we 
will comply with the policies that the Council has approved and that are in compliance with 
the Audit Commission’s Standing Guidance.  

In 2015/16, the Council engaged us to act as a reporting accountant in respect of certifying its 
Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts return. We were also engaged by PSAA to certifying 
your housing subsidy claim, following instructions set by PSAA and the DWP. The ratio of 
non-audit fees to audit fees was approximately 30:1. We determined that neither the work nor 
the associated fees represented a threat to the independence of our engagement team.  

Should the Council engage us to undertake this work in 2016/17 the ratio of non-audit fees to 
audit fees will be broadly similar to that in 2015/16. On this basis, we would again consider 
that no additional safeguards would be required to maintain the independence of our 
engagement team.  

Members of the Audit and Standards Committee should note that we have been engaged by 
HTS Group Limited as their statutory auditors and are currently finalising formal terms of 
engagement and the audit fee. We are not providing non-audit services. 

A self-interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have 
objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to the Council. We 
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service 
lines, is in this position, in compliance with Ethical Standard 4. 

There are no other self-interest threats at the date of this report.  

Self-review threats 

Self-review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others 
within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in the financial 
statements. 

There are no other self-review threats at the date of this report.  

Management threats 

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management 
of your entity. Management threats may also arise during the provision of a non-audit service 
where management is required to make judgements or decisions based on that work. 

24



Independence 

EY  13 

There are no management threats at the date of this report.  

Other threats 

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise. 

There are no other threats at the date of this report.  

Overall Assessment 

Overall we consider that the adopted safeguards appropriately mitigate the principal threats 
identified, and we therefore confirm that EY is independent and the objectivity and 
independence of Suresh Patel, the audit engagement Director, and the audit engagement 
team have not been compromised. 

5.3 Other required communications 

EY has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and 
ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence and integrity are maintained.  

Details of the key policies and processes within EY for maintaining objectivity and 
independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report, which the firm is required to 
publish by law. The most recent version of this report is for the year ended June 2016 and 
can be found here: 

http://www.ey.com/UK/en/About-us/EY-UK-Transparency-Report-2016 

 

 

25



Fees 

EY  14 

Appendix A Fees 

A breakdown of our agreed fee is shown below. 

 Planned fee 
2016/17 
£ 

Scale Fee 
2016/17 
£ 

Outturn fee  
2015/16 
£ 

Explanation 

 

Opinion Audit and VFM 
Conclusion 

79,514 77,514 77,514 Proposed £2,000 
additional audit fee to 
carry out the additional 
audit procedures required 
for auditing the group 
accounts. 

Total Audit Fee – Code work 79,514 77,514 77,514  

Certification of claims and 
returns 

1
 

18,695 18,695 18,695 Certification of the housing 
subsidy return 

Non-audit work tbc 0 3,200 Certification of the pooled 
housing capital receipts 
return [TBC] 

All fees exclude VAT. 

 
The agreed fee presented above is based on the following assumptions: 

► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables; 

► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified; 

► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and 

► The Council has an effective control environment. 

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation to the agreed 
fee. This will be discussed with the Council in advance. 

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public and formal objections 
will be charged in addition to the scale fee. 

 

 
1
 Our fee for the certification of grant claims is based on the indicative scale fee set by the PSAA. 

26



UK required communications with those charged with governance 

EY  15 

Appendix B UK required communications 
with those charged with 
governance 

There are certain communications that we must provide to the Audit and Standards 
Committee. These are detailed here: 

Required communication Reference 

Planning and audit approach  

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit including any limitations.  

► Audit Plan 

Significant findings from the audit  

► Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices 
including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement 
disclosures 

► Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit 

► Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with 
management 

► Written representations that we are seeking 

► Expected modifications to the audit report 

► Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process 

► Audit Results Report 

Misstatements  

► Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion  

► The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods  

► A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected  

► In writing, corrected misstatements that are significant  

► Audit Results Report 

Fraud  

► Enquiries of the Audit and Standards Committee to determine whether they have 
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity 

► Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates 
that a fraud may exist 

► A discussion of any other matters related to fraud 

► Audit Results Report 

Related parties 

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related 
parties including, when applicable: 

► Non-disclosure by management  

► Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions  

► Disagreement over disclosures  

► Non-compliance with laws and regulations  

► Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity  

► Audit Results Report 

External confirmations 

► Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations  

► Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures 

► Audit Results Report 

Consideration of laws and regulations  

► Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material 
and believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with 
legislation on tipping off 

► Enquiry of the Audit and Standards Committee into possible instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the 
financial statements and that the Audit and Standards Committee may be aware 
of 

► Audit Results Report 

27



UK required communications with those charged with governance 

EY  16 

Required communication Reference 

Independence  

Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s objectivity and 
independence 

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement director’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as: 

► The principal threats 

► Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness 

► An overall assessment of threats and safeguards 

► Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain 
objectivity and independence 

► Audit Plan 

► Audit Results Report 

Going concern 

Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, including: 

► Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty 

► Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements 

► The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements 

► Audit Results Report 

Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit ► Audit Results Report 

Fee Information 

► Breakdown of fee information at the agreement of the initial audit plan 

► Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit 

► Audit Plan 

► Audit Results Report 

► Annual Audit Letter if 
considered necessary 

Group audits 

► An overview of the type of work to be performed on the financial information of the 
components 

► An overview of the nature of the group audit team’s planned involvement in the 
work to be performed by the component auditors on the f financial information of 
significant components 

► Instances where the group audit team’s evaluation of the work of a component 
auditor gave rise to a concern about the quality of that auditor’s work 

► Any limitations on the group audit, for example, where the group engagement 
team’s access to information may have been restricted 

► Fraud or suspected fraud involving group management, component management, 
employees who have significant roles in group-wide controls or others where the 
fraud resulted in a material misstatement of the group financial statements 

► Audit Plan 

► Audit Results Report 

Certification work  

► Summary of certification work undertaken 

► Certification Report 

 

 

 

28



 

 

 

 

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory 

Ernst & Young LLP 

© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK. 
All Rights Reserved.  

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales  
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited. 

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF. 

ey.com 

 

 

29



Ernst & Young LLP

Certification of claims and
returns annual report 2015-16
Harlow District Council

February 2017

30

Agenda Item 9



The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.
A list of members’ names is available for inspection at 1 More London Place, London
SE1 2AF, the firm’s principal place of business and registered office.

The Members of the Audit and Standards Committee
Harlow District Council
Civic Centre
The Water Gardens
Harlow
CM20 1 WG

27 February 2017

Email: dhanson@uk.ey.com

Dear Members

Certification of claims and returns annual report 2015-16
Harlow District Council

We are pleased to report on our certification and other assurance work. This report summarises the
results of our work on Harlow District Council’s 2015-16 claims and returns.

Scope of work

Local authorities claim large sums of public money in grants and subsidies from central government
and other grant-paying bodies and must complete returns providing financial information to
government departments. In some cases these grant-paying bodies and government departments
require appropriately qualified auditors to certify the claims and returns submitted to them.

From 1 April 2015, the duty to make arrangements for the certification of relevant claims and returns
and to prescribe scales of fees for this work was delegated to the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd
(PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.

For 2015-16, these arrangements required only the certification of the housing benefits subsidy claim.
In certifying this claim we followed a methodology determined by the Department for Work and
Pensions and did not undertake an audit of the claim.

Summary

Section 1 of this report outlines the results of our 2015-16 certification work and highlights the
significant issues.

We checked and certified the housing benefits subsidy claim with a total value of £37,441,274. We
met the submission deadline of 30 November. We reported details of the errors identified by our
testing in a qualification letter to the Department for Work and Pensions.  Similar errors were identified
in the previous year.  Amendments were also made to the claim. These resulted in a marginal decrease
in the subsidy due of £1,446.

Fees for certification and other returns work are summarised in section 3. Fees for the certification of
2015-16 housing benefit subsidy claims were published by the PSAA in March 2015 and are available
on the PSAA’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

Ernst & Young LLP
400 Capability Green
Luton LU1 3LU

Tel: + 44 1582 643 000
Fax: + 44 1582 643 001
ey.com

Tel: 023 8038 2000

31



We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the March meeting of
the Audit and Standards Committee.

Yours faithfully

Debbie Hanson
Executive Director
Ernst & Young LLP
Enc

32



Contents

EY ÷ i

Contents

1. Housing benefits subsidy claim ............................................................................ 1

2. 2015-16 certification fees ................................................................................... 2

3. Looking forward .................................................................................................. 3

33



Housing benefits subsidy claim

EY ÷ 1

1. Housing benefits subsidy claim

Scope of work Results

Value of claim presented for
certification

£37,442,720

Amended/Not amended Amended – subsidy reduced by £1,446.

Qualification letter Yes

Fee – 2015-16
Fee – 2014-15

£18,695
£31,386

Local Government administers the Government’s housing benefits scheme for tenants and
can claim subsidies from the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) towards the cost of
benefits paid.

The certification guidance requires auditors to complete more extensive ‘40+’ or extended
testing if initial testing identifies errors in the calculation of benefit or compilation of the
claim. 40+ testing may also be carried out as a result of errors that have been identified in
the audit of previous year’s claims.

Our initial testing of Housing Revenue Account rent rebates identified one claim where
benefit had been overpaid as the claimant’s income had been incorrectly calculated.  40+
testing was therefore undertaken.  This testing identified:

· Three claims where benefit had been underpaid as a result of errors in the
calculation of the claimant’s income.

· Three claims where we concluded benefit had been overpaid as proof of the
claimant’s income could not be established.

The results of this testing were included within a qualification letter to DWP. In our letter
we reported to DWP an extrapolated error of £9,647. The value of this error was relatively
small and the Council remained within the lower threshold set by the DWP for
overpayments caused by error or delay; DWP have confirmed that there would be no
reduction in the subsidy payable to the Council in respect of this extrapolated error.

34



2015-16 certification fees

EY ÷ 2

2. 2015-16 certification fees

The Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) determine a scale fee each year for the
audit of claims and returns.  For 2015-16, these scale fees were published by the PSAA in
March 2015 and are available on the PSAA’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

Claim or return 2015-16 2015-16 2014-15

Actual fee
£

Indicative fee
£

Actual fee
£

Housing benefits subsidy claim 18,695 18,695 31,3861

1 The actual fee for 2014-15 includes an increase to the scale fee of £3,416.

35



Looking forward

EY ÷ 3

3. Looking forward

From 1 April 2015, the duty to make arrangements for the certification of relevant claims
and returns and to prescribe scales of fees for this work was delegated to PSAA by the
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.

The Council’s indicative certification fee for 2016-17 is £23,540. This was prescribed by
PSAA in March 2016, based on no changes to the work programme for 2015-16. Indicative
fees for 2016/17 housing benefit subsidy certification work are based on final 2014/15
certification fees. PSAA reduced scale audit fees and indicative certification fees for most
audited bodies by 25 per cent based on the fees applicable for 2014-15.

Details of individual indicative fees are available at the following web address:
http://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-and-certification-fees/201617-work-programme-and-scales-
of-fees/individual-indicative-certification-fees/

We must seek the agreement of PSAA to any proposed variations to these indicative
certification fees. We will inform the Head of Finance before seeking any such variation.

PSAA is currently consulting on the 2017-18 work programme. There are no changes
planned to the work required and the arrangements for certification of housing benefit
subsidy claims remain in the work programme. However, this is the final year in which these
certification arrangements will apply. From 2018-19, the Council will be responsible for
appointing their own auditor and this is likely to include making their own arrangements for
the certification of the housing benefit subsidy claim in accordance with the requirements
that will be established by the DWP.

36



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

Ernst & Young LLP

© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved.

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

ey.com

37



REPORT TO: AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

DATE: 8 MARCH 2017  

TITLE: REVIEW OF AUDIT AND STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE 

LEAD OFFICER: 

 

SARAH MARSH, INTERNAL AUDIT 
MANAGER (01279) 446884 

RECOMMENDED that: 

A The Committee notes the minor changes to its Terms of Reference as agreed on 
22 February 2017 by the Chairman of the Constitution Panel. 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

1. An audit committee should regularly review its terms of reference to ensure it 
satisfies the core functions of an audit committee as prescribed by the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) in their publication Audit 
Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities 2013.  
 

2. The terms of reference for the Audit and Standards Committee have not been 
reviewed or amended since their inception in 2012.  
 

3. At its November 2016 meeting, the Committee undertook a review of its own 
effectiveness through a self-assessment. At the same time internal audit carried 
out a comparison of the Committee’s current terms of reference with the 2013 
CIPFA model terms of reference (Appendix A) in order to highlight the 
Committee where future changes might be advised.  
 

4. Internal audit concluded the current terms of reference remained fit for purpose, 
but highlighted whether they should be amended in the following areas on the 
back of the effectiveness review: 
 

(i) Clarify the Committee’s role in respect of value for money. 
 

(ii) Clarify the Committee’s role in considering the Council’s overall 
framework of assurance and co-ordination of assurance providers.  

 
(iii) Specify the ways in which it holds internal audit to account e.g. by 

reviewing its Charter, resource requirements, and any significant 
changes to the risk-based internal audit plan. 
 

(iv) Include the requirement to report periodically to Full Council on its 
own effectiveness.  

 
5. In addition, the Committee, at its November 2016 meeting, questioned its role as 

Standards Committee for item 23 in their current terms of reference – receiving 

38

Agenda Item 10



annual reports in a monitoring and guidance role on whistle blowing, bullying and 
harassment. 

REVISED TERMS OF REFERENCE 

6. A revised terms of reference is presented as Appendix B for comment, with track 
changes left on to identify the changes more easily. Number formatting will be 
addressed in the final version.  
 

7. The role and function of the Audit and Standards Committee forms part of the 
Council’s constitution and changes to the policy aspects of the Constitution can 
only be approved by Full Council.  

 
8. Minor amendments to the Committee’s terms of reference, as proposed here, do 

not constitute a policy change. Therefore, the Head of Governance has the 
authority to make editing and consistency changes after discussion with the 
Chairman of the Constitution Panel.   

 
 
IMPLICATIONS 

Place (includes Sustainability) 
None specific. 
Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Place 
 
Finance (includes ICT) 
An effective Audit Committee has a pivotal role regarding the Annual Governance 
Statement which explains how the Council delivers good governance and reviews 
the effectiveness of these arrangements. 
Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance  

Housing 
None specific. 
Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 

Community Wellbeing (includes Regeneration, Equalities and Social Inclusion) 
None specific. 
Author: Jane Greer, Head of Community Wellbeing 

Governance (includes HR) 
Periodic review by the Committee of its terms of reference complies with 
recommended best practice for audit committees. 
Author: Brian Keane, Head of Governance 
 
Background Papers 

CIPFA Audit Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (edition 
2013) 

Glossary of terms/abbreviations used 

CIPFA – The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

39



Appendices 

Appendix A – 2013 CIPFA model terms of reference  

Appendix B – Committee’s revised terms of reference  

 

 

40



Appendix A 
Audit Committees: Practical Guidance For Local Authorities And 
Police (2013 Edition) 

SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE – LOCAL AUTHORITIES  
 
Statement of purpose  
1  Our audit committee is a key component of [name of authority]’s corporate 

governance. It provides an independent and high-level focus on the audit, 
assurance and reporting arrangements that underpin good governance and 
financial standards.  

2  The purpose of our audit committee is to provide independent assurance to the 
members [or identify others charged with governance in your authority] of the 
adequacy of the risk management framework and the internal control 
environment. It provides independent review of [name of authority]’s 
governance, risk management and control frameworks and oversees the 
financial reporting and annual governance processes. It oversees internal audit 
and external audit, helping to ensure efficient and effective assurance 
arrangements are in place.  

Governance, risk and control 
3  To review the council’s corporate governance arrangements against the good 

governance framework and consider annual governance reports and 
assurances.  

4  To review the Annual Governance Statement prior to approval and consider 
whether it properly reflects the risk environment and supporting assurances, 
taking into account internal audit’s opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the council’s framework of governance, risk management and 
control.  

5  To consider the council’s arrangements to secure value for money and review 
assurances and assessments on the effectiveness of these arrangements.  

6  To consider the council’s framework of assurance and ensure that it adequately 
addresses the risks and priorities of the council.  

7  To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management in the 
council.  

8  To monitor progress in addressing risk-related issues reported to the 
committee.  

9  To consider reports on the effectiveness of internal controls and monitor the 
implementation of agreed actions.  

10  To review the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm to the council from 
fraud and corruption.  

11  To monitor the counter-fraud strategy, actions and resources.  

41



Internal audit  
12  To approve the internal audit charter.  
13  To review proposals made in relation to the appointment of external providers 

of internal audit services and to make recommendations.  
14  To approve the risk-based internal audit plan, including internal audit’s resource 

requirements, the approach to using other sources of assurance and any work 
required to place reliance upon those other sources.  

15  To approve significant interim changes to the risk-based internal audit plan and 
resource requirements.  

16  To make appropriate enquiries of both management and the head of internal 
audit to determine if there are any inappropriate scope or resource limitations.  

17  To consider reports from the head of internal audit on internal audit’s 
performance during the year, including the performance of external providers of 
internal audit services. These will include:  
a) Updates on the work of internal audit including key findings, issues of 
concern and action in hand as a result of internal audit work.  
b) Regular reports on the results of the Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme.  
c) Reports on instances where the internal audit function does not conform to 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government Application 
Note, considering whether the non-conformance is significant enough that it 
must be included in the Annual Governance Statement.  

18  To consider the head of internal audit’s annual report:  
a) The statement of the level of conformance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note and the results of the 
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme that supports the statement – 
these will indicate the reliability of the conclusions of internal audit.  
b) The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control together with the 
summary of the work supporting the opinion – these will assist the committee in 
reviewing the Annual Governance Statement.  

19 To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested.  
20 To receive reports outlining the action taken where the head of internal audit 

has concluded that management has accepted a level of risk that may be 
unacceptable to the authority or there are concerns about progress with the 
implementation of agreed actions.  

21 To contribute to the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme and in 
particular, to the external quality assessment of internal audit that takes place 
at least once every five years.  

22 To consider a report on the effectiveness of internal audit to support the Annual 
Governance Statement, where required to do so by the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations (see Appendix A).  

42



23  To support the development of effective communication with the head of 
internal audit.  

 
External audit  
24 To consider the external auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports, and the report 

to those charged with governance.  
25 To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor.  
26 To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it 

gives value for money.  
27 To commission work from internal and external audit.  
28 To advise and recommend on the effectiveness of relationships between 

external and internal audit and other inspection agencies or relevant bodies.  
 
Financial reporting  
29 To review the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to consider whether 

appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether there are 
concerns arising from the financial statements or from the audit that need to be 
brought to the attention of the council.  

30 To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on 
issues arising from the audit of the accounts.  

 
Accountability arrangements  
31 To report to those charged with governance on the committee’s findings, 

conclusions and recommendations concerning the adequacy and effectiveness 
of their governance, risk management and internal control frameworks; financial 
reporting arrangements, and internal and external audit functions. 

32 To report to full council on a regular basis on the committee’s performance in 
relation to the terms of reference and the effectiveness of the committee in 
meeting its purpose.  

 
 

43



Appendix B: Proposed Terms of Reference for Harlow Audit and Standards 
Committee 
 
The Audit and Standards Committee was established at the Annual Council meeting 
on 24 May 2012. Its role is two-fold: 
  

1. Audit - The Committee oversees the Council's internal audit and risk 
functions; receives and approves external audit reports; scrutinises the 
Annual Statement of Accounts; makes reports and recommendations to the 
Cabinet, Committees and the Council as a whole on the adequacy of its 
corporate governance and risk management arrangements and the 
associated control environment. 

  
2. Standards - The Committee deals with a range of matters including issues 

concerning Councillors' conduct, provides advice and guidance to the Council, 
the Cabinet and individual Councillors and advises on the application and 
review of the Constitution. 

 
 
The Terms of Reference of the Audit and Standards Committee are as follows: 
  
Audit 
  
1. Approve the Internal Audit charter. 
 
21. To consider the Audit Manager’s annual report and opinion, the summary of 

Internal Audit activity and the level of assurance it can give over the Council’s 
internal control, risk management and corporate governance arrangements. 

  
32. To approve the risk-based Internal Audit plan, including resource requirements 

and its approach to using other sources of assurance. 
 
42. To consider summaries of Internal Audit reports. 
  
53. To consider reports from Internal Audit on agreed recommendations not 

implemented within reasonable timescales. 
  
64. To consider reports dealing with the management and performance of the 

providers of Internal Audit services. 
  
75. To consider the external auditor’s Annual Audit and Inspection Letter and other 

reports. 
  
86. To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives 

value for money. 
  
97. To liaise over the appointment of the Council’s external auditor. 
  
108. To commission work from Internal Audit and the external auditor. 
  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.5 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.5 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.5 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.5 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.5 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.5 cm

44



Regulatory framework 
  
119. To review any issue referred to it by the Chief Executive, Chief Operating 

Officer, Statutory Officer or any Council body. 
  
120. To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and 

corporate governance in the Council. 
 
131. To consider the Council’s arrangements to secure value for money and review 

assurances and assessments on the effectiveness of these arrangements. 
  
141. To monitor Council policies on whistle blowing, for contraventions of financial 

and other procedures or fraud-related situations; Anti-fraud and Corruption 
Strategy and complaints. 

  
152. To monitor the production of the Annual Governance Statement and 

recommend its adoption to the Cabinet. 
  
163. To consider the Council’s framework of assurance and ensure it is adequately 

addresses the risks and priorities of the Council. arrangements for corporate 
governance and recommend necessary actions to ensure compliance with best 
practice. 

  
174. To consider the Council’s compliance with its own and other published 

standards and controls. 
  
Accounts 
  
185. To review the annual Statement of Accounts and consider whether appropriate 

accounting policies have been followed and whether there are concerns arising 
from the financial statements or from the audit that need to be brought to the 
attention of the Cabinet and/or the Full Council. 

  
196. To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on 

issues arising from their audit of the accounts. 
 
Accountability arrangements  
 

2017.  Report to Ffull Council on a regular basis on the Ccommittee’s performance in 
relation to the terms of reference and the effectiveness of the Ccommittee in 
meeting its purpose.  

 
  
Standards 
  
2117. Promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by Councillors and co-

opted persons of Committees. 
  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.75 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.75 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.75 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.75 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.75 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.75 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.75 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.75 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.75 cm

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.75 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.75 cm

45



2218. Assisting Councillors and co-opted persons of Committees to observe the 
Code of Conduct. 

  
2319. Advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the Code of Conduct. 
  
240. Monitoring the operation of the Code of Conduct. 
  
251. Advising and/or censuring and/or imposing a sanction on a Councillor or co-

opted person of a Committee (or former Councillor or co-opted person) of the 
Council. 

  
262. Having oversight of all aspects of Councillor development. 
  
273. Receiving annual reports inHaving a monitoring and guidance role on whistle 

blowing, bullying and harassment regarding Councillors.. 
  
284. Being fully involved in any ethical review of the Council or its activities. 
  
Meetings are open to members of the public, except for when confidential 
information is being considered. 
  
Members of the public may ask questions at meetings of the Audit and Standards 
Committee. 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.75 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.75 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.75 cm

46

http://www.harlow.gov.uk/questions


REPORT TO: AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

DATE: 8 MARCH 2017 

TITLE: 

 

EXTERNAL QUALITY ASSURANCE OF 
INTERNAL AUDIT AGAINST THE PUBLIC 
SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS 
(PSIAS) 

LEAD OFFICER: 

 

SARAH MARSH, INTERNAL AUDIT 
MANAGER (01279) 446884 

 

RECOMMENDED that: 

A The Committee agrees that internal audit complies with the requirements of the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 
 

B The Committee notes the actions proposed to enhance the Internal Audit service. 
 
PURPOSE 

1. This report presents the results of an independent external quality assessment of 
the internal audit shared service against the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) which came into effect in April 2013. It also details an action 
plan will be developed to address the recommendations for improvement noted 
during the review. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2. The overall conclusion of the report is that internal audit complies with the PSIAS 
and continues to provide an effective and efficient service to each Council 
(Epping Forest District Council, Broxbourne Borough Council and the Council).  
There are some actions identified by the external assessor which would enhance 
service provision. These do not affect the overall level of compliance with the 
PSIAS, but do ensure internal audit continues to develop and demonstrate best 
practice. 

APPROACH TO THE EXTERNAL QUALITY ASSESSMENT 

3. Following a procurement exercise Gateway Assure Limited was appointed to 
undertake the External Quality Assessment (EQA) which took the assessor five 
days in November 2016 to complete and included the following elements: 
 

(i) A self-assessment against the PSIAS requirements was completed by 
the Internal Audit Manager followed by a desk top review by the 
assessor. This included an evaluation of core information as evidence; 
such as procedural notes, audit charter, audit plans, example audit file 
and report, and latest annual reports. 
 

(ii) The assessor met with each of Internal Audit Manager’s direct reports 
the Section 151 Officers at the Council and Broxbourne Borough 

47

Agenda Item 11



Council (BBC) and the Monitoring Officer at Epping Forest District 
Council (EFDC). They also conducted an electronic survey with the 
Audit Committee Chairmen. 

 
(iii) A visit to all three sites for the file review exercise, and to meet the 

team, with an exit interview at the end with the Internal Audit Manager. 
 

(iv) Production and discussion of draft report with the Internal Audit 
Manager to highlight matters in relation to the assessment against the 
PSIAS, benchmark data showing a comparison with other internal audit 
services and best practice advice, as well as ensuring factual accuracy. 

 
4. The review assessed the internal audit function against three recognisable 

standards: 

(i) Resources – Business vision and mission, governance arrangements, 
recognition of standards, guidance, procedures and supervision, terms 
of engagement, ethics and business conduct. 

(ii) Competency – Charter, internal audit manual, planning and allocation 
of staffing, recruitment (numbers and skills), training (professional and 
technical), appraisal and development. 

(iii) Delivery – Client engagement and relationships, directed led service, 
terms of engagement (audit/assignment brief), discussion of assurance 
and advisory opinions, reporting at assignment and strategic levels. 

 
SUMMARY OF THE EXTERNAL QUALITY ASSESSMENT (EQA) REVIEW 
 
5. The overall conclusion from the EQA is internal audit provision within the councils 

of Broxbourne, Epping Forest and Harlow complies with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. The full report can be found as Appendix A. 
 

6. Since 2013 internal audit has assessed its own compliance and reported this 
annually to their audit committees as being mostly compliant with the Standards 
with a few minor areas for enhancement.  

 
7. The EQA outcome reported has been benchmarked against other provisions in 

both this sector and the wider industry and shows that the Internal Audit team 
compares favourably with regard to its peers. 

 
8. The introduction of the shared service has benefited the three councils and 

receives positive feedback from both audit committee chairs as well as executive 
management. 

 
9. A key theme featuring throughout the report is the need to develop aspects of the 

audit process to improve focus on the significant risks facing each Council in the 
achievement of its objectives. Internal audit continues to move to an approach 
that reflects full recognition of risk factors.   

 

48



10. The recommendations contained within the report have been used to produce an 
improvement action plan as detailed in the table below: 

Area for 
Improvement 

Improvements 
Required 

Action to be taken Due Date 

Working 
papers 

Internal audit working 
papers to focus on major 
risks to the Council.  
This should include an 
assessment of the 
inherent risks in each 
area (regardless of 
whether or not these are 
specifically recorded with 
the risk management 
system) and other 
sources of assurances. 
 

Revise the Terms of 
Reference to ensure 
there is a more explicit 
link between the 
Council’s risk registers 
and assurances to be 
provided.  
 
Revise the control matrix 
(used to detail testing 
undertaken and 
conclusions drawn from 
it) so that it allows 
auditors to focus on the 
key controls and 
assurances which reflect 
the most material control 
risks to the area under 
review. 
 
Brief the internal audit 
team on the need for a 
greater emphasis of risk 
in audit reports. 

Completed 
January 
2017 
 
 
 
 
 
Completed 
January 
2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Completed 
January 
2017 

Assignment 
reporting 

To reduce the time taken 
to deliver final report. 

Undertake a team 
mapping exercise to help 
identify ways in which 
audit processes can be 
streamlined in order to 
reduce the time from 
scoping an audit to 
producing the final report. 
 

March 2017 

Audit 
Opinions 

The overall audit opinion 
and associated risk 
definitions used by 
Internal Audit to reflect 
the risk appetite within 
the Council. 

Review the audit opinions 
and definitions used at 
each Council and how 
these align with each 
council’s risk appetite and 
their own risk definitions. 
 
 

Completed. 
All three 
councils 
have the 
following 
audit opinion 
options for 
the 2017/18 
Audit Plan: 
Substantial, 
Moderate 
and Limited. 

49



Annual Audit 
Plan 

Annual Audit Plan to 
provide a direct link to 
corporate risks and other 
available assurances.   

Annual plan will be 
constructed to provide an 
explicit link to the 
Councils risks and other 
assurances available to 
internal audit. This will be 
able to provide wider 
assurance to the Council 
in support of the Annual 
Governance Statement. 
 

Annual Plan 
to be 
presented to 
the March 
2017 Audit 
and 
Standards 
Committee 

Annual 
Report 

The Annual Report to 
provide an explicit link to 
risk and other 
assurances.  

The Internal Audit 
Manager’s Annual Report 
to contain reference to all 
significant risks and 
considers the results of 
work performed by other 
assurance providers. Due 
regard will be given to the 
suggested example 
wording in the EQA 
report.   
 

Annual 
Report to be 
presented to 
the June 
2017 Audit 
and 
Standards 
Committee 

 

IMPLICATIONS 

Place (includes Sustainability) 
None specific. 
Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Place 

Finance (includes ICT) 
The cost of the external assessment was a fixed fee and was shared equally by all 
three councils, met from the Internal Audit budget.  
 
An effective Internal Audit function has a pivotal role in providing assurances on the 
Council’s internal control, governance and risk management arrangements. This 
EQA review helps demonstrate this.  
Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance  

Housing 
None specific. 
Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 

Community Wellbeing (includes Regeneration, Equalities and Social Inclusion) 
None specific. 
Author: Jane Greer, Head of Community Wellbeing 

 

50



Governance (includes HR) 
The 2016 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) makes it a mandatory 
requirement that an internal audit function is externally assessed at least once every 
five years by a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside the 
organisation.  Non-compliance with PSIAS could undermine the work of the internal 
audit function and could lead to scrutiny from external agencies, for example the 
Department for Communities and Local Government. 
Author: Brian Keane, Head of Governance 

Background papers 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (2016) 

Appendices 

Appendix A – External Quality Assessment full report 

 
 

 
 
 

 

51



                                   
                                       
Broxbourne, Epping Forest and Harlow District 
Councils  
Internal Audit Shared Service 
 
External Quality Assessment 
November 2016 

52



Purpose of assignment 
The Internal Audit service for the Local Authorities of Broxbourne, Epping Forest and Harlow District Councils is  provided by a 
shared service arrangement which under the leadership of Sarah Marsh as Chief Internal Auditor (CIA); the team have responded 
to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and have increasingly worked to a common methodology for delivery of internal audit 
services. Performance against the standard has been self assessed on an annual basis and appropriate reports provided to 
member authority committee meetings. 
 
The purpose of this review is to provide an external and independent quality review in accordance with standard 1312. We see 
this as not merely a compliance exercise and have also highlighted aspects of the service that we regard as best practice as well 
as summarised our thoughts as to where further development can be made to enhance the value of the service being provided. 
  
The teams have significant experience, with a range of relevant qualifications and it has been recognised that there is a need to 
ensure a consistent approach to delivering assurance, as this is beneficial regarding communication with clients, working 
practices, reporting and therefore associated supervision and training needs. At a corporate level, this is established through the 
presence of an Internal Audit Charter which effectively defines the standards to which the shared service will carry out its work and 
is supported by a framework of standard templates and accepted processes to which the internal audit team work consistently. 
 
The report reflects our opinion regarding the services currently provided measured against the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS), which we trust will be of benefit to individual staff, the team and the local authorities serviced by the Internal 
Audit Shared Service. Our observations and recommendations have been summarised within categories relating to the 
Resources, Competency, and Delivery and the team graded as being at one of three stages within each category, grades are 
related to our opinion as to whether the service is developing, established or excelling. 
 
The outcome has been benchmarked against other provision in both the sector and the wider industry which shows that the team 
compares favourably with regard to its peers. 

53



Executive summary 
The internal audit shared service has responded to the merger of the three teams in recent years and has moved towards a 
common approach that is consistent with the PSIAS. 
The significant change within the PSIAS reflects the focus on a requirement to implement a risk based internal audit approach to 
all aspects of internal audit work – significantly in relation to planning at a strategic and assignment level as well as in reporting. 
The shared service does adopt a risk based approach through the development of its own risk assessment at a  strategic planning 
level, at an assignment level through recognition of risk register content and in testing schedules although further development 
would be beneficial both in terms of recognising inherent risk and in terms of reflecting wider sector risk experience of the internal 
audit team within Audit Planning documents and Terms of Reference. 
All three authorities with which the  Shared Service is involved have developing risk management strategies and associated 
frameworks; as a consequence, it would be beneficial for internal audit to increasingly align its processes with those of the host 
authority as this would promote effective communication, structure audit work on ‘what really matters’ and use risk as the basis for 
reporting. In this respect we have recommended that future opinions and recommendations relate directly to established risk 
definitions within each authority. 
Increasing transparency within the Council systems regarding the inherent risks being faced and upon those assurances available 
would allow internal audit to clearly define risks and key mitigating controls and therefore provide a robust basis for communication 
with managers and with other assurance providers, although different perceptions of risk appetite exist within the Councils 
involved.  
The internal audit shared service has benefitted from a period of stability during which staff have remained consistent, and 
therefore a robust internal audit standard has been maintained and delivered using an experienced team. This has allowed the 
service to demonstrate compliance with the PSIAS. 
Nevertheless with increasing pressures on Council budgets, significant change to service delivery and as a result increasing risk; 
there is a need for the division to continue to enhance its delivery through greater awareness of the relevance of risk to both the 
Council and its own approach, in order to ensure that it focuses on the most appropriate areas and as a result demonstrates that it 
provides a service that effectively contributes towards the achievement of each Councils objectives. 

 
 

54



              Basis for EQA 

Compliance with PSIAS 

 Resources  
Business Vision and Mission, Governance arrangements, 
Recognition of standards, Guidance, Procedures and Supervision, 
Terms of Engagement, Ethics and business conduct. 

 Competency 
Charter, Internal Audit Manual, Planning and Allocation of staffing, 
Recruitment (Numbers and skills), Training (Professional and 
Technical), Appraisal and Development 

 Delivery  
Client engagement and relationship, Directed led service, Terms of 
Engagement (Audit/Assignment Brief), Discussion of assurance and 
advisory opinions, Reporting at assignment and strategic levels 
 

55



Grading of recommendations 
 The grading of recommendations is intended to reflect the relative 

importance to the relevant standard within the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards (PSIAS). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 In grading our recommendations, we have considered the wider 
environment within the Council in terms of both the degree of 
transformation that is currently taking place as well as our assessment 
of the level of risk maturity that currently exists as these will have a 
consequence for the conduct of internal audit planning as well as 
subsequent communication. 

 
 

Recommendation 
grading 

Explanation 

Enhance The internal audit shared service must enhance its practice in order to 
demonstrate transparent alignment with the relevant PSIAS in order to 
demonstrate a contribution to the achievement of the organisations 
objectives in relation to risk management, governance and control. 

Review The Internal audit division should review its approach in this area to better 
reflect the application of the PSIAS. 

Consider The internal audit division should consider whether revision of its approach 
merits attention in order to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the 
delivery of services 

56



 
 

Summary of good practice identified 
within EQA 

 

Standard Good practice identified Observation 

1000 An Internal Audit Charter has been established and 
agreed with each Authority 

The Charter is comprehensive and establishes an appropriate 
framework against which internal audit services can be delivered. 

1312 The IASS has conducted annual self assessment 
exercises resulting in an annual development plan which 
is agreed by the host authorities. 

Demonstrates a process and commitment to continuous 
improvement. 

2020 Active engagement at officer and member level Represents the establishment of a good understanding of key 
issues through interaction with positive feedback from all officers 
and members who participated in the assessment. 

2030 The IASS routinely assesses its training needs and 
discusses requirements with the Lead Officer Group 

This represents a firm basis for the consideration of training and 
recruitment needs as well as the use of external support 

2040 A detailed internal audit manual is in place  Provides for a consistent methodology, within the IASS this is 
delivered through a series of templates  

2060 Reports are produced using a standard template which is 
consistently applied. Customer feedback is routinely 
obtained following conduct of an audit. 

Demonstration of a consistent approach for communication which 
is well received by management and the Audit Committee 

2300 Audits are performed using an approach which is 
consistently applied 

This supports a view that the internal audit team understand the 
standard processes, receive supervision and are effectively trained. 

2400 Reports are clear and express opinions in a manner that 
is understood by stakeholders. Reports containing more 
significant recommendations are presented to 
operational management meetings where felt appropriate 

Reports are produced on a timely basis, with summaries being 
produced for Audit Committee attention 

57



 
 

Resources  
Business Vision and Mission, Governance arrangements, Recognition of standards, Guidance, 

Procedures and Supervision, Terms of Engagement, Ethics and business conduct. 

 

Issue identified Recommended action 

1 No observations  
 

58



Competency 
Charter, Internal Audit Manual, Planning and Allocation of staffing, Recruitment (Numbers and 

skills), Training (Professional and Technical), Appraisal and Development 
 

 
 
 

Issue identified Recommended action 

1 Governance and standards 
The Internal Audit Shared Service does not have an Internal Audit 
Manual which reflects the PSIAS. Instead the service has opted for a 
‘Process and Standards Map’ supported by a series of standard 
templates which must be completed as part of the audit process. It is 
felt that understanding and status of internal audit would be 
enhanced if key standards within the PSIAS were fully cross 
referenced to these documents. 

 
Understanding of and training in the application of the PSIAS would 
be enhanced by cross referencing templates to specific standards or 
by reflecting the key standards within the document ‘IA Process and 
Standards Map’. 
 

2 Internal Audit Planning 
Whilst internal audit planning is being increasingly based upon a risk 
model as required by the PSIAS, the process largely depends on an 
assessment devised by internal audit; rather than reflecting wider 
risk issues and in particular use of different definitions of risk impact 
to those approved within the Council risk management strategy. 
 
There should be a direct and identified link between the internal 
 audit plan content discussed with Audit Committees and the risk 
 based reasoning for inclusion of the assignment in the audit  
 plan, in turn this should drive the preparation of the terms of 
 reference for each assignment as recorded within the Audit Brief. 
 
The focus for assignments can therefore be shown to directly relate 
to the value of the ‘control risk’ and as a result an opinion based 
upon the robustness of the controls and assurances available to 
management and the Council. 
 

 
a.    Audit Plans should be constructed through using an audit needs 

assessment process which achieves the objectives of   
       the service as set out in the Internal Audit Charter. The  
       audit planning process should be designed to reflect the 

assurance needs of each Council through transparent alignment 
with the Council wide approach to risk management.  

 
b.    The internal audit planning process should further identify other 

sources of assurance that are available and upon which 
Councils can place reliance. 

 
c.    The starting point for the development of the Audit Brief should 

be a preliminary discussion with management regarding the 
inherent and residual risks relevant to the audit area under 
review. It may aid assignment planning, if the management 
objectives for the area under review were also identified. 

       This should result in the formation of a direct link with the  
       Authority’s risk register and the key mitigating controls 

highlighted, thereby aiding the understanding and ability of 
members of the Audit Committee to contribute to the assurance 
agenda. 

 

59



 
 
 
 
 

Delivery  
Client engagement and relationship, Directed led service, Terms of Engagement 

(Audit/Assignment Brief), Discussion of assurance and advisory opinions, Reporting at assignment 
and strategic levels 

 
 
 

Issue identified Recommended action 

1. Assignment Planning 
The service currently initiates each audit through engagement with 
management which provides for creation of an Audit Planning Document 
and a Terms of Reference which is then shared with management as an 
agreed basis for the audit. 
 
The assignment is then structured around control objectives and a 
framework of expected controls and was previously only loosely related 
to the risks which have been discussed with management. In a new 
process from 2016/17 each control objective is supported by an analysis 
of risks. 

 
Internal audit working papers should focus on major risks to 
the Council that have been identified and discussed with the 
auditee; this should include an assessment of the inherent 
risks in each area (regardless of whether these are 
specifically recorded with the risk management system) 
 
Terms of reference should be constructed based upon the 
principal risks identified and not control objectives.  This will 
allow the audit to naturally reflect assurance regarding the 
risks identified within the ‘Control Matrix’. An example 
template is provided at Appendix A. 
 
 

2 Focus on pre-identified controls 
Assignments are currently undertaken by reference to control objectives 
and corresponding controls; there is a tendency for these to reflect Key 
Lines of Enquiry (KLOE) based controls emanating from external audit 
practices and to a degree past audits rather than be generated to reflect 
the materiality of the current risk involved. The service has more 
recently commenced consideration of wider risk aspects relating to the 
area subject to review.  
 
. 
 

 
The use of risk as a basis for the control matrix will allow 
auditors to focus on the key controls and assurances which 
reflect the most material control risk to the area under 
review. 
 
The service should continue to develop pre-audit 
communication with management to focus on significant risk 
and key controls. 

60



 
 
 
 
 

Delivery  
Client engagement and relationship, Directed led service, Terms of Engagement 

(Audit/Assignment Brief), Discussion of assurance and advisory opinions, Reporting at assignment 
and strategic levels 

 
 
 

Issue identified Recommended action 

3. Control Matrix templates 
Assignments commence with meetings with officers at which notes are 
recoded relating to how the system works.  
 
The control matrix then contains a record of the actual controls and 
there is a tendency for auditors to duplicate the notes referred to above 
and/or the controls in the section on findings. 
 
Further improvements to remove duplication are in place for 2016/17. 

 
Recording the system in note form and the essential 
detail of interviews is regarded as good practice. 
 
When this is supported by actual controls and 
appropriate testing the findings column may by 
completed by the use of an opinion in the form of is the 
control adequate and effective (or not).  

4 Closing meetings 
Whilst those files reviewed all contained reference to a closure or exit 
meeting it was noticed that the record of the closing/exit meeting took 
different forms. 
 
There was evidence that the closure meeting also highlights good 
practice and this is considered good practice. 

 
A consistent approach to the recording of the details 
discussed at the closing meeting and any agreements 
reached should be introduced. 

5 File structure 
A consistent file structure has been introduced across all areas of the 
Shared Service. We did observe that the reporting section was 
‘cluttered’ and may be better organised to enable effective review and 
supervision. 
 
A file index form is used to record progress on each audit and generate 
the file structure. 

 
It is suggested that the sub structure to the reporting file may 
be better organised as closing meeting, draft report and final 
report. 

61



Delivery continued 
Issue identified Recommended action 

6 Audit Opinions - Recommendations  
 
These are currently developed and assessed by each internal auditor, 
and reviewed by the Supervisor prior to release of the draft report and 
which include a grading of the recommendations being made.  
 
The definitions used by internal audit to support opinions have been 
revised between 2015/16 and 2016/17 financial years with the later 
year showing better reflection with each Authority’s risk appetite and 
the definitions of impact risk.  
 
The basis for grading of recommendations should normally as a result 
influence the overall opinion for each audit directly, for example if a 
risk falling into a definition of the highest category is identified 
(potential for death, loss greater than £500k) then the assurance level 
given is reduced. Any risk of this nature should automatically trigger a 
negative audit opinion of ‘limited assurance’. 
 
At present the service prefers to retain a basis which provides 
flexibility for the CIA to determine the grading of the recommendations 
being made. 
 
 

 
 
a) Risk definitions used by internal audit should be developed 

to reflect the risk appetite within each organisation, and the 
definitions of impact and likelihood used by the Council. 

 
It is recognised best practice to use terminology such as 
High, Medium and Low  or Fundamental, Significant and 
Merits attention and perhaps support this with RAG rated 
colours linked to the Council’s risk management system. 

 
These should be used by each internal auditor to grade the 
recommendation and discuss the level of risk to which the 
organisation is exposed with each auditee at the exit 
meeting. 

 
 

b)    Consideration should be given to removing the need to 
       include ‘low’ rated recommendations in formal audit 
       reports; alternatively reflecting on these in discussion at the 

closure meeting and confirmed in a side letter or email to 
       the manager. This would aid the profile of internal audit 
       through concentrating on things that really matter in relation 

to significant risk as defined within risk management 
policies.  

 

62



Delivery continued 
Issue identified Recommended action 

7 Audit Opinions - Overall opinions   
 
These are currently based upon the personal judgement of each 
auditor, within the definitions specified as relating and subject to 
review by the supervisor and CIA of the draft report prior to release.  
 
Wider best practice provides for three levels of opinion being 
substantial, adequate or limited as this provides a clearer indication to 
stakeholders of the level of assurance that can be gained. This 
opinion can then be aligned directly with the nature of the risks being 
identified and the grading of those recommendations being made. 

 
 
a) The grading of reports should be based upon the level of risk 
exposure identified within the review and reflect the highest  
ranked recommendation being reported upon.  
 
Best practice would reflect: 
- Where a fundamental risk (red) is identified that limited 
assurance is given. 
- Where significant risks (amber) are identified then adequate 
assurance is given, and 
- Where ‘merits attention’ (green) risks are identified these are 
not referred to in the report and substantial assurance is given. 
 
 
 
b) Reducing the levels of opinion to three at all clients would 
provide a clearer indication of the assurance being provided 
and represent a more straight-forward approach for internal 
audit staff to administer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

63



Delivery continued 
Issue identified Recommended action 

8 Delays in reporting 
 
The service produces a consistent quality of report albeit that internal 
audit reports may be considered ‘lengthy’ by comparison to 
developing practice in other sectors. In developing an increasingly risk 
based approach consideration could be given to moving to an 
exceptions based executive summary highlighting significant risks. 
 
We do however recognise that the section does not wish to move to 
an exceptions based methodology and that both Executive 
Management and Audit Committee reflection on current reporting is 
positive. 
 
It was observed that the time taken to deliver a final report was often 
extensive; this appear to relate to audit briefs being planned ahead of 
the commencement of fieldwork and the time taken to agree a draft 
report with management. 
 

 
 
a) The service should consider whether focusing on risk as a 
basis for reporting would allow movement towards an 
‘executive summary’ approach which highlights only significant 
risks. 
 
This may help further build the profile of internal audit and allow 
greater efficiency within the team through reducing the time 
consumed in report production and clearance; thereby reducing 
the overall time taken to report on assignments. 
 
 
b) Moving to reporting on significant risk may also increase 
ownership of draft reports by management and decrease 
response times; if this is not successful it is recommended that 
delays in response are brought to the attention of the Audit 
Committee. 
 
 

64



Delivery continued 
Issue identified Recommended action 

9 Annual Report 
The CIA produces an Annual Audit report which summarises the 
years work and includes analysis of performance. The opinion reflects 
 
“Based upon the results of work undertaken during the year, it is the 
Internal Audit Manager’s overall opinion that the Council has an 
adequate and effective governance, risk management and control 
framework”. 
 
The form required by the PSIAS requires a wider statement which 
‘must also include significant risk exposures and control issues, 
including fraud risks, governance issues, and other matters needed or 
requested by senior management and the board’. 
 

 
In alignment with recommendations made earlier, the internal 
audit plan should be constructed to provide an explicit link to 
risk and the other assurances available so that the CIA is able 
to provide wider assurance to each Authority in support of the 
governance statement.  
 
Best practice is that the Annual Report should also contain 
reference to all significant risks and therefore co-ordination with 
and an understanding of issues being raised by the range of 
assurance sources available is essential in order to meet this 
broader scope. 
 
 
An example of the words which may be used has been 
provided in Appendix B. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

65



Summary Audit Committee feedback 
Question A B C 

Purpose    

Understanding of Council requirements    

Adequate assurance provided    

Independence with contact outside of meetings    

Status    

Experience, skills and effective communication    

Effective performance    

Effective planning and priorities    

Other relevant observations 

a) Councils benefit from the shared service. 
b) The team does well to cover the diverse range of services and therefore risks. 
c) Responds well to questions from Members. 
d) The team create good working relationships. 
e) Internal Audit has grasped the importance of following up recommendations to evidence 
implementation and regularly reports adherence to action plans. 
f)  The shared service has improved the performance of the internal auditors and by some measure has 
raised their status and objectivity 

66



                   Overall assessment 

1 RESOURCES Excelling –  Processes in this area are fully 
embedded within every day practices and reflect 
best practice that is at least consistent with 
PSIAS expectations. 

2 COMPETENCY Established – Processes in this area are 
embedded within every day practices, the EQA 
has identified a number of areas in which further 
development is desirable.  

3 DELIVERY Established – Processes in this area are 
embedded within every day practices, the EQA 
has identified a number of areas in which further 
development is desirable. 

67



Benchmarking  
Sector analysis 

0

1

2

3

Resources Competency Delivery

Local Government
IASS
Housing
Private
All

Achievement level 
1 - Developing 
2 - Established 
3 - Excelling 

68



Benchmarking  
Industry analysis 

0

1

2

3

100011002010202020302040205020602200230024002450

Local Government
IASS

Achievement level 
1 - Developing 
2 - Established 
3 - Excelling 

69



Key PSIAS Standards assessed 
(for benchmarking purposes) 

Stan
dard 

Focus 

1000 Purpose, Authority and 
Responsibility 

The purpose, authority, and responsibility of the internal audit activity must be formally defined in an internal audit charter, 
consistent with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, and the Standards. The chief audit executive must 
periodically review the internal audit charter and present it to senior management and the board for approval. 

1100 Independence and 
Objectivity 

The internal audit activity must be independent, and internal auditors must be objective in performing their work. 

2010 Planning The chief audit executive must establish risk-based plans to determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with 
the organisation’s goals.  

2020 Communication and 
approval 

The chief audit executive must communicate the internal audit activity’s plans and resource requirements, including significant 
interim changes, to senior management and the board for review and approval. The chief audit executive must also communicate 
the impact of resource limitations.  

2030 Resource Management The chief audit executive must ensure that internal audit resources are appropriate, sufficient, and effectively deployed to achieve 
the approved plan.  

2040 Policies The chief audit executive must establish policies and procedures to guide the internal audit activity.  

2050 Co-ordination The chief audit executive should share information and coordinate activities with other internal and external providers of 
assurance and consulting services to ensure proper coverage and minimize duplication of efforts. 

2060 Reporting The chief audit executive must report periodically to senior management and the board on the internal audit activity’s purpose, 
authority, responsibility, and performance relative to its plan. Reporting must also include significant risk exposures and control 
issues, including fraud risks, governance issues, and other matters needed or requested by senior management and the board. 

2200 Engagement planning Internal auditors must develop and document a plan for each engagement, including the engagement’s objectives, scope, timing, 
and resource allocations. 

2300 Work programme Internal auditors must identify, analyse, evaluate, and document sufficient information to achieve the engagement’s objectives.  

2400 Communicating results Internal auditors must communicate the results of engagements 

2450 Overall opinions When an overall opinion is issued, it must take into account the expectations of senior management, the board, and other 
stakeholders and must be supported by sufficient, reliable, relevant, and useful information.  

70



 The internal audit provision within the Councils of Broxbourne, Epping Forest and Harlow complies with the expectations of 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 The introduction of the shared service has benefited the three Councils and receives positive feedback from both Audit 
Committee Chairs as well as Executive Management. 

 There are a number of areas in which the service can be further improved in relation to the use of risk based auditing which 
will provide increased levels of assurance to the Councils and assist in improving its profile and the subsequent feedback 
that is received from clients: 
     -    the service should continue to move to an approach that reflects full recognition of the risk factors  
          recognised by the Councils both at a strategic planning level and when conducting assignments. 
      -  the use of opinions should be reviewed to better reflect the risk appetite of the Council and should reflect identification 

and escalation of recommendations graded as significant that match risk definitions graded as ‘red’ or ‘amber’ within 
the various risk management systems. 

      -  the Annual Report of the Chief Internal Auditor should be enhanced to reflect assurance related to awareness of the 
significant risks being faced by the Council. 

 The further development of risk management systems to reflect an Assurance Framework within each Council would enable 
greater recognition of key mitigating controls and the other sources of assurance with which internal audit effort should be 
co-ordinated in order to support the Governance Statements process. 

 Some revisions to the internal audit process may be beneficial in terms of improving efficiency and transparency of the 
assurance being provided.  

Conclusion  

71



Appendix A 

72



Appendix B 
Example wording for positive annual opinion  
 As the internal audit service provider to the organisation, I am required as the Head of Internal Audit to provide the organisation and 
the Chief Executive with a statement on the adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management, control and 
governance processes.   
 In giving an opinion it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute.  The most that the internal audit service can provide to 
the organisation is a reasonable assurance there are no major weaknesses in the organisation’s risk management, control and 
governance processes. 
 In assessing the level of assurance to be given, the following have been taken into account:: 
 All audits undertaken during the year; 
 Any follow-up action taken in respect of audits from previous periods; 
 Significant recommendations not accepted by management or acted upon and the consequent risks; 
 The effects of any significant changes in the organisation’s objectives or systems; 
 Matters arising from previous reports to the organisation; 
 Any limitations which may have been placed on the scope of internal audit; 
 The extent to which resources constraints may impinge on the Head of Internal Audit's ability to meet the full audit needs of the 

organisation; 
 What proportion of the organisation’s audit need has been covered to date; and 
 The results of work performed by other assurance providers including the work of the financial statement auditors (if applicable). 
 We are satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken to allow us to draw a reasonable conclusion as to the 
adequacy and effectiveness (or inadequacy and ineffectiveness) of the organisation’s risk management, control and governance 
processes. 
 Overall in our opinion, based upon the reviews performed during the year, the organisation: 
 has adequate and effective risk management arrangements; 
 has adequate and effective governance; and 
 has adequate and effective control processes. 

73



 
 

REPORT TO: AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

DATE: 8 MARCH 2017 

TITLE: INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY AND PLAN 
2017/18 

LEAD OFFICER: 

 

SARAH MARSH, INTERNAL AUDIT 
MANAGER (01279) 446884 

RECOMMENDED that: 

A The Committee approves the Audit Strategy and Plan for 2017/18.  

INTRODUCTION 

1. The internal audit function provides independent and objective assurance and 
consulting services to the Council. This Internal Audit Strategy summarises the key 
principles for the Internal Audit team for the period 2017/18, with some longer term 
aims. The Strategy supports the Audit Plan which sets out the work of the internal 
audit service for the year.  
 

2. Internal audit supports and contributes to the achievement of the Council’s        
2017-2020 corporate priorities and guiding principles*. These have been taken into 
account whilst developing the Internal Audit Strategy and Plan. 

 
(i) More and better housing. 

 
(ii) Regeneration and a thriving economy. 

 
(iii) Wellbeing and social inclusion. 

 
(iv) A clean and green environment. 

 
(v) Successful children and young people. 

 
(vi) Being the Community Leader *. 

 
(vii) Sound resource management*. 

 
PURPOSE  

3. The purpose of the Internal Audit Strategy and Plan is to document the internal audit 
team’s approach to: 
 

(i) Provide independent and objective assurance to Councillors and 
senior management on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal 
control framework. 

74

Agenda Item 12



 
 

(ii) Ensure the recognition of the key risks the Council faces in meeting its 
objectives when determining and allocating the use of internal audit 
resources. 
 

(iii) Add value and support to senior management in providing effective 
control, whilst identifying opportunities for improving value for money. 
 

(iv) Deliver an internal audit service that is compliant with the requirements 
of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 
INTERNAL AUDIT MISSION AND CORE PRINCIPLES 

4. In 2015 the Global Institute of Internal Auditors made some new additions to the 
International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF), which included for the first 
time a mission and ten core principles. These have been adopted by this Shared 
Internal Audit Service and are listed below. 

Mission: To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-
based and objective assurance, advice, and insight. 

Core principles: 
 

(i) Demonstrates integrity. 

(ii) Demonstrates competence and due professional care. 

(iii) Is objective and free from undue influence (independent). 

(iv) Aligns with the strategies, objectives, and risks of the organisation. 

(v) Is appropriately positioned and adequately resourced. 

(vi) Demonstrates quality and continuous improvement. 

(vii) Communicates effectively. 

(viii) Provides risk-based assurance. 

(ix) Is insightful, proactive, and future-focused. 

(x) Promotes organisational improvement. 

THE INTERNAL AUDIT APPROACH  

5. While internal audit provides assurance through completing a programme of planned 
work, the service is also flexible and responsive to changing and emerging issues.  
Some audit work is delivered on a consultancy basis, contributing advice on risk and 
controls. For example, ex-officio attendance at project meetings or undertaking a 
specific investigation of a newly identified issue. 
   

75



 
 

6. The purpose, authority and responsibility of internal audit are formally defined in the 
Internal Audit Charter, which was approved at the March 2016 Audit and Standards 
Committee.  

 
KEY DELIVERABLES 

7. The key deliverables for the internal audit service during 2017/18 are: 
 

(i) Delivery of the Plan - the Internal Audit Manager will ensure there is 
sufficient audit coverage in order to provide an annual internal audit 
opinion and report, which feeds into the Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement. 
 

(ii) Integrated approach to assurance – Providing ongoing assurance to 
management on the integrity, effectiveness and operation of the Council’s 
internal control, governance and risk management processes. Working 
with other assurance providers including External Audit to prevent 
duplication of work. 
 

(iii) Management commitment - Ensure agreed management responses to 
audit recommendations made are implemented thereby improving the 
overall control framework.  
 

(iv) Continually develop our approach – To develop, improve and deliver a 
quality assurance and improvement programme for the service, including 
working closely with the Audit and Standards Committee. 
 

(v) Business insight - Working more closely with services to establish greater 
relevance to what matter most to the Council by contemplating current and 
future key risks and challenges. 

 
PROTOCOL FOR AUDIT REVIEWS 

8. We will conduct each review in line with our standard audit methodology which is 
aligned to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  
 

9. For each audit a lead auditee will be identified who will be involved in scoping to 
ensure the audit is appropriately focused on key risks areas, providing assurance 
and maximising added value. Terms of reference will be produced for each audit to 
ensure the scope, objectives and approach are agreed with the appropriate head of 
service. 

 
10. Following fieldwork a draft internal audit report will be issued for discussion with the 

appropriate levels of management which is normally set out in the terms of 
reference. 

 

76



 
 

11. Final reports will be issued after the agreement of draft reports and will contain 
completed management actions plans identifying those responsible for their 
implementation and appropriate timescales. 

 
12. Agreed actions or recommendations will be followed up through the internal audit 

tracker process. All high priority recommendations and any passing their original 
implementation date are reported to the Audit and Standards Committee. 

 
QUALITY ASSURANCE AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

13. The Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme ensures the 
work of the internal audit function conforms with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS), operates in an efficient and effective manner and is adding 
value and continually improving Internal Audit activity. This is achieved through 
internal and external assessment, monitoring, and reporting on performance.  
 

14. In November 2016, the internal audit function underwent an External Quality 
Assessment (EQA), which in line with the PSIAS, must be conducted every five 
years by a qualified, independent assessor from outside the Council. The EQA 
which covered all three Councils in the shared service, confirmed the internal audit 
service complies with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 
15. To achieve planned coverage, deliver a high standard of customer care and 

demonstrate effectiveness of the service, performance targets have been 
established based on best professional practice and cover the following aspects: 

 
16. The following service performance targets will be reported on in 2017/18: 

Aspect of Service Performance Indicator Target 
Audit Plan • Achievement of the annual 

Plan 
• 95% minimum 
 

Internal Audit 
processes 

• Issue of draft report after 
closing meeting 

• Issue of final report after 
agreement with client to draft 

• 10 working days 
 
• 5 working days 

Effective management 
engagement 

• Management responses within 
10 working days of draft report 

• Implementation of agreed audit 
recommendations  

• 10 working days 
 

• Within agreed timescales 

 
DEVELOPING THE INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

17. The methodology for developing the Internal Audit Plan is focused on the 
quantification of the risks associated with the Council’s objectives in consultation 
with key Officers. This process also takes into account: 

77



 
 

(i) Knowledge and experience accumulated in internal audit, including the 
results of previous reviews. 
 

(ii) A review of audit themes against the Corporate Risk Register and Council 
priorities. 
 

(iii) The work of other assurance providers both internally and externally. 
 

(iv) The external environment including economic climate, government 
initiatives such as welfare reform and changes in funding.  
 

(v) Harmonisation of themes with Borough of Broxbourne Council and Epping 
Forest District Council to enable benchmarking and sharing of good 
practice. 

 
18. The recent External Quality Assessment identified a need for better alignment 

between the Internal Audit Plan and the risks facing each Council. Through this 
internal audit’s work will help inform each Council’s risk management framework 
enabling greater recognition of key mitigating controls and other sources of 
assurances available. Where possible the risks identified in the Audit Plan (Appendix 
A) have been taken directly from the Council’s Risk Register.    
 

19. The Internal Audit Plan is indicative and changes may need to be made as the risk 
profile and priorities of the Council change. This will be achieved by ongoing review 
and amendment in consultation with relevant officers and any significant changes 
brought to the Audit and Standards Committee for approval. 

 
20. It is important for internal audit to plan ahead and allocate resources over the 

medium term but still maintain a flexibility of approach. This is achieved by 
documenting known risks over a three year period so that the three year plan 
includes an indication of proposed audit work for years two and three, based on 
current known risks if circumstances remain unchanged. However, as new risks 
emerge audit resources over the medium term will be focused accordingly.  

 
21. The sections of the Internal Audit Plan include: 
 

(i) Corporate Framework  – Key risk areas including those defined in the 
Council’s Strategic Risk Register. 
 

(ii) Strategic themes – Including cross cutting issues some of which will be 
incorporated within operational audits or will be undertaken through 
consultative work. 
 

(iii) Service areas – Operational audits determined on a risk assessment 
and/or business priorities.  
 

78



 
 

PRIORITY AREAS FOR 2017/18 

22. Having regard for the current risk profile of the Council the following have been 
identified as priority areas for Internal Audit work for 2017/18.  These may not be 
audits in themselves, but cross cutting themes that will be fundamental to the scope 
of Internal Audit work undertaken. 
 

(i) Information governance and management – This includes data quality and 
security. Internal Audit work will seek to provide assurances over the 
management information used for making key decisions.  
 

(ii) Risk management – Internal Audit has a key role in promoting effective 
risk management and through its work continues to assist the Head of 
Finance in ensuring a robust risk management framework across the 
Council. The Audit Plan is driven by the risks of the Council. Within 
individual audits, internal audit will seek compliance with good risk 
management practices and the adequacy of controls put in place by 
management to mitigate risks in their service areas.  
 

(iii) Fraud – Internal audit continues to support the Council’s anti-fraud work 
and strategy, with a focus on producing a Council wide fraud action plan.   
 

(iv) Value for money (VfM) – A focus on VfM is reflected in internal audit’s 
work mainly as a cross cutting theme within operational audits. These will 
incorporate how the Council makes the best use of resources and assets 
the balance of cost and performance and meeting the needs of our 
residents, and providing challenge on whether services could be provided 
in a different way. 
 

(v) Audit planning, strategy and Audit and Standards Committee support – 
Internal audit will work with the Audit and Standards Committee in 
developing its role in relation to best practice and to contribute to effective 
corporate governance of the Council. 

 
23. At the operational level the key priorities of internal audit work in 2017/18 include: 

 
(i) HTS (Property and Environment) Ltd – Internal audit will be actively 

involved and seek assurances on the adequacy of internal control, 
governance and the management of risks of the new HTS venture from 
the Council’s perspective.  
 

(ii) InPhase – Internal audit continues to contribute to the InPhase project 
which is the new service planning, risk management and performance 
management system. Internal audit will assist the Council as the system 
goes live to ensure services are using the system to full advantage.  
 

79



 
 

(iii) Key financial systems – The effectiveness of controls and management of 
risks with the core financial systems remains a core part of internal audit 
work. Audits have been scheduled on a three year cyclical basis so not all 
key financial systems will be undertaken each year. 

 
RESOURCES 

24. During 2016/17, the internal audit function operated as a formal shared service 
between Broxbourne and the Council with the Internal Audit Manager also 
overseeing the delivery of internal audit services for Epping Forest District Council 
(EFDC). The cost of the post of Internal Audit Manager being shared equally across 
the three Councils. 
 

25. The formal shared service with Broxbourne consists of the Internal Audit Manager 
two Senior Auditors (1.8 f.t.e) and one Auditor (1.0 f.t.e) who are all employed by 
Broxbourne and the costs shared equally with the Council. In addition, external 
expertise was bought in to undertake IT audits at the Council. In April 2016 the post 
of Senior Auditor (0.5 f.t.e.) within the Council became vacant and it was agreed not 
to fill this post relying on the shared service between the three Councils instead.  

 
26. The internal audit function at EFDC consists of one Senior Auditor and two Auditors 

(all 1.0 f.t.e) and working practices and methodology between the three Councils 
have been aligned.  

 
27. It was agreed with the three Councils that for 2016/17 auditors would work across 

each Council regardless who employed them and this has been happening in 
practice. Further progress is being made towards establishing a formal shared 
service between the three Councils, with Broxbourne being the host authority and 
employer of the shared internal audit staff, from 1 April 2017.  To oversee Internal 
Audit a Shared Services Board is being created comprising the S151 Officers from 
Broxbourne and Harlow and the Monitoring Officer for Epping Forest (as Internal 
Audit falls under their remit) to oversee the implementation and delivery of the 
function, assess quality and performance, manage risks and consider major 
changes to the service.  

 
AUDIT PLAN 

28. The Audit Plan as detailed in Appendix A requires 385 days as summarised in the 
table below:  

Thematic Area Audit days 
2017/18  

Corporate framework including governance, 
assurance framework, fraud, value for money and 
risk management 

53 (14%) 

Information and performance management 47 (12%) 
Projects, Joint Working and Partnerships 30 (8%) 

80



 
 

Financial audits 48 (12%) 
IT Audits 12 (3%) 
Cross cutting/themed audits 24 (6%) 
Operational Audits 76 (20%) 
Follow Ups 15 (4%) 
Audit Committee Support 25 (6%) 
Advice and other engagement with the business 35 (9%) 
Contingency (including investigations) 20 (5%) 
TOTAL 385 

 

IMPLICATIONS 
 
Place (includes Sustainability) 
None specific. 
Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Place 

Finance (includes ICT) 
Failure to achieve the audit plan may lead to a lack of assurance that internal controls 
are effective and risks properly managed. 
Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance  

Housing 
None specific. 
Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 

Community Wellbeing (includes Regeneration, Equalities and Social Inclusion) 
None specific. 
Author: Jane Greer, Head of Community Wellbeing 

Governance (includes HR) 
The responsibilities, duties and obligations of Internal Audit are set out in the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (2016) 
against which internal audit activity should be measured and determined. 
Author: Brian Keane, Head of Governance 

Background Papers 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
Internal Audit Charter 
Internal Audit resource plan and risk assessment 
 
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used 

f.t.e – full time equivalent 

81



 
 

Appendices 

Appendix A – Harlow Council Internal Audit Three Year Plan 2017/18 to 19/20 

82



Page 1 of 9 
 

Harlow Council Internal Audit Three Year Plan 2017/18 to 19/20  Appendix A 

Audit Area  and 
Context 

Corporate Risks 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Outline/Scope of work for 17/18 (to 
be finalised when the work is 
scoped) 

Corporate Framework 
Governance & 
Probity 
 
The corporate 
priorities are 
underpinned by 
sound leadership, 
management of 
resources, and 
governance 
 

The Council’s 
governance 
framework 
underpins 
everything it 
does; therefore, 
robust 
arrangements 
are key in 
managing this 
risk. 
 

Harlow Trading 
Services (HTS) 
Property and 

Environment Ltd -  
oversight of 
operational 
governance 

arrangements 

HTS – strategic 
governance audit 

 
Conflicts of 

interest with third 
parties (HTS, 

partnerships and 
shared services) 

 
 

Members 
expenses and 

allowances (last 
audit 13/14) 

 
Equalities and 
use of impact 
assessments 

 

Review of effectiveness of 
governance and oversight 
arrangements during periods of 
significant change. In 2017/18 IA 
(Internal Audit) will maintain a 
watching brief on the Council’s 
relationship with HTS with an 
assurance audit in 18/19 as 
processes embed. 
Ex officio member of the Corporate 
Governance Group. 
 
 

Fraud  
 
Proactive fraud 
work 

CR01 (Financial 
resilience) - any 
loss through 
fraud is a drain 
on resources 
which, in turn, 
reduces the 
amounts 
available for 
service delivery.  

Fraud action plan   Co-ordinating data matching (NFI), 
training and awareness, interaction 
with corporate fraud initiatives 
including tenancy fraud.  

Potential for fraud considered in all 
audits. 

During 17/18 the fraud action plan 
supporting the Council’s anti-fraud 
and corruption strategy will be 
developed and its impact on 
combatting fraud assessed. 

Assurance 
Framework incl. 
Risk Management 
and support to 

Risk in 
achieving 
corporate 
priorities as 

Year-end 
assurance 
reporting 

 

  Co-ordination of year end 
assurance reporting and support to 
the Audit Committee.  
 

83



Page 2 of 9 
 

Audit Area  and 
Context 

Corporate Risks 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Outline/Scope of work for 17/18 (to 
be finalised when the work is 
scoped) 

Audit Committee these are 
underpinned by 
sound 
leadership, 
management of 
resources, and 
governance. 
 

Roll out of In-
Phase 

Assistance to Head of Finance in 
developing and embedding risk 
management processes as the new 
InPhase system for performance 
management, risk management and 
service planning is rolled out.  

Information 
Management and 
Governance -  

Data protection 
and security. Data 
sets, owners and 
protocols. 
Governance and 
data sharing. 
Training and 
awareness 

Breach of data 
protection and 
other legislation 
related risks 
which could 
lead to 
significant fines 
and reputational 
damage. 

General Data 
Protection 
Regulation 

 
 
 

Data retention 
and disposal 

policy (deferred 
from 16/17) 

Freedom of 
Information and 
Data Protection 

IA will continue its work from 16/17 
in helping the Council prepare for 
the new EU General Data 
Protection Regulation expected 
2018. This includes construction 
and population of a corporate 
Information Asset Register and 
review of data related policy and 
procedures.  
 

Performance 
Management: 
Data integrity & 
quality (collection, 
collation, analysis 
and validation). 
Use of 
performance 
targets 

Risk of non- 
achievement of 
corporate 
priorities and 
lack of 
transparency. 

InPhase 
performance 
management 

system 
 

HTS KPIs and 
links to contract 

payments 

Place Community 
Wellbeing 

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 
considered within operational audits 
plus advice and oversight as the 
new InPhase performance 
management system is rolled out.  
 
Each year IA will examine key PIs 
within a specific service area 
including any reliance on third party 
data. In 17/18 the focus will be HTS 
and links to contract incentives and 
penalties and payment methods. . 
  

84



Page 3 of 9 
 

Audit Area  and 
Context 

Corporate Risks 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Outline/Scope of work for 17/18 (to 
be finalised when the work is 
scoped) 

Value for Money 
(VfM) - Guiding 
principle of the 
Council 

VfM helps the 
Council 
manage its 
corporate risk 
CR01 on 
financial 
resilience.  

   VfM considered within operational 
audits including procurement. 
Specific VfM reviews could be 
undertaken e.g. use of consultants, 
printing, or cleaning. Previous VfM 
audits have included energy 
management and agency staff. 

Joint Working,  
Shared Services, 
Outsourcing and 
Partnerships 

On corporate 
risk register: 
CR06 - Lack of 
resources and 
capacity, 
Council and key 
partners. 

Harlow Trading 
Services – 
contract 

management 
 

Community 
Wellbeing/ 

discretionary 
services 

  To ensure arrangements are 
working in the best interests of the 
Council with appropriate 
governance and monitoring 
arrangements in place. For 17/18 
this will focus on HTS to ensure 
appropriate contract management 
processes are in place, as well as 
Community Wellbeing/discretionary 
services, both of which are covered 
elsewhere in the plan. 

Projects 
 
Business case, 
project 
methodology, 
governance 
arrangements, 
contract 
management and 
viability 

Poor project 
management 
increases the 
risk of projects 
not being 
delivered on 
time, to budget 
or does not 
meet the needs 
of the Council. 

Advice, guidance 
and oversight for 

the following 
projects: waste 
contract, cash 
office and new 

HR/payroll 
system 

Capital projects 
programme  

 

 Each year examine a sample of 
capital and smaller projects 
focusing on the key risks depending 
where there are in the process e.g. 
business case, procurement, 
delivery, return on investment, post 
project assessment.  

Ex officio member of the ICT 
Operational Board 

Contingency Annual 
provision for 
responsive 
work, special 
investigations 

   Will also take into account 
themes/issues coming out of the 
Annual Governance Statement and 
completion of 16/17 Plan. 

85



Page 4 of 9 
 

Audit Area  and 
Context 

Corporate Risks 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Outline/Scope of work for 17/18 (to 
be finalised when the work is 
scoped) 

and/or 
key/emerging 
risk areas 

Themed/cross cutting audits  
Procurement 
 
Themed audits - 
compliance, VfM, 
fraud, goods and 
services. End to 
end processes 
(need, selection, 
appointment, 
contract  
management & 
exit strategies) 

Risks include 
non-compliance 
with legislation, 
fraud and not 
achieving value 
for money. 

Procurement and 
organised crime 

Compliance with 
Contract Standing 

Orders – 
tendering process 

including 
contracts register 

Contract 
Management – 

including the new 
waste 

arrangements 

In December 2016 the Home Office 
issued its Organised Crime 
Procurement Pilot report. IA will use 
the suggested checklist to assess 
the Council’s serious and organised 
crime risks relating to procurement. 
 

Health & Safety Risk of 
compromising 
the health and 
safety of 
individuals and 
non-compliance 
with H&S 
legislation 
leading to fines 
or 
imprisonment.  

Covered 
elsewhere in the 

plan 

HTS safe working 
practices 

 

Corporate H&S 
Framework, 

including policies 

H&S for 17/18 is covered elsewhere 
in the plan – see Place and Council 
buildings, and Community 
Wellbeing and discretionary 
services) 
 
In 18/19 IA will ascertain adequacy 
of assurances provided to Harlow 
District Council that HTS are 
following safe practices.  

Business 
Continuity 
Planning (bcp) 

Without 
adequate bcp 
the Council 
could fail to 
deliver its 
services in the 

Business 
Continuity 
Planning - 
oversight 

Business 
Continuity 
Planning – 

assurance audit 
 

IT Disaster 
Recovery (last 
audited 16/17) 

18/19 will be a formal assurance 
audit as during 17/18 IA will retain 
oversight of bcp through the tracker. 

86



Page 5 of 9 
 

Audit Area  and 
Context 

Corporate Risks 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Outline/Scope of work for 17/18 (to 
be finalised when the work is 
scoped) 

event of 
significant 
incident. 

Key Financial 
Controls (KFC) 
 
Three-year rolling 
programme of full 
system and key 
control audits 
(unless significant 
change in 
process/system or 
poor audit 
outcome) 

CR01 (Financial 
resilience) 

Creditors (last 
audit 14/15) 

Cash & banking 
(last audit 14/15) 
Main accounting 
system/general 

ledger (last audit 
14/15) 
Capital 

expenditure & 
fixed assets (last 

audit 14/15) 

Treasury 
Management (last 

audit 15/16) 
Housing Rents 

(last audit 15/16) 
Housing Benefits 
(last audit 16/17) 

 
 

Council Tax (last 
audit 16/17) 

Business rates 
(last audit 16/17) 
Payroll (last audit 

16/17) 
Debtors (last 
audit 16/17) 

 
 

Creditors audit will take into account 
the recent Agresso upgrade. Cash 
and banking will include review of 
the PARIS receipting system and 
focus on cash at the Council’s 
satellite sites including the 
Playhouse and Latton Bush. 
Note housing benefits has been 
brought forward one year to 
alleviate the number of audits in any 
particular year within the Revenues 
and Benefits section.  
 
 

Income Streams 
Management of 
resources features 
in the corporate 
plan 

To ensure 
financial 
resilience the 
Council needs 
to protect and 
maximise its 
income streams 
 

Covered under 
Key Financial 

Controls audits 
above 

 
 

See KFC audits 
above 

HTS – progress 
against the 

business case 
 

See KFC audits 
above 

Green waste 
Commercial rents 
(last audit 14/15) 

 
 
 

All income related audits will 
consider the impact of the Customer 
Service review and strategy on its 
residents and customers. 
 
 

IT Audits: 
IT Governance, IT 
Regulation, 
Security/Privacy,  
Business Systems,  

Risks around 
data and asset 
security and 
loss of service. 
Opportunity for 

Cyber security 
 
 
 

IT Asset 
Management 

 
Provision of IT 

services to HTS 

Mobile working 
 

Software 
licencing  

A specialist IT Auditor could be 
brought in for more technical audits 
as required. 17/18 will be a non-
technical audit to assess the 
adequacy of the Council’s 

87



Page 6 of 9 
 

Audit Area  and 
Context 

Corporate Risks 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Outline/Scope of work for 17/18 (to 
be finalised when the work is 
scoped) 

DRP/BCP, 
Network,  
Emerging 
Technologies e.g. 
mobile devices,  
IT Applications and 
Projects 

IT to be an 
enabler for 
delivering the 
Council’s 
priorities.   

 
 
 

framework in preventing cyber-
crime. The outcomes of which may 
help shape future IT related audits. 
In addition, IA will assess the impact 
to the Council (financial and non-
financial) of IT providing services to 
HTS. 
Ex officio member of the ICT 
Operational Board. 
 

Operational/service audits - Audits post 17/18 may change depending on the Council’s risk profile 
Housing: 
Housing 
Management 
Property Services 
Housing Needs 
and Options 
Sheltered Housing 
Area Housing 
Home Ownership 
 
. 

CR03 - Lack of 
Suitable 
Housing Mix 
 
CR04 - Lack of 
adequate 
Council housing 
 
 

Tenancy fraud 
and enforcement  

Responsive 
repairs to ensure 
the HTS is 
adequately 
managing these 
on behalf of the 
Council.  

Home ownership 
& leaseholders 
service charges 
(carried forward 
from 16/17) 

Access to 
housing 
(combining 
homelessness 
and allocations) 

H&S – fire risk 
assessments 

Voids (last audit 
14/15) and 
planned 
maintenance (last 
audit 16/17). 

 

 

 

 

Major works (last 
audit 16/17). 

H&S – legionella 

Tenancy 
agreements 

Garages (last 
audit 13/14) 

 

 

 

In 17/18 IA will provide support to 
new Housing Fraud Officer post.  IA 
will examine the process for setting 
and recovering leaseholder service 
charges as well as ensuring 
responsive repairs targets are being 
met by HTS. 

88



Page 7 of 9 
 

Audit Area  and 
Context 

Corporate Risks 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Outline/Scope of work for 17/18 (to 
be finalised when the work is 
scoped) 

Community 
Wellbeing: 
Community Safety 
Community, 
Leisure and 
Culture 
Customer & Media 
Services 
Youth & 
Citizenship 
 

CR05 - Inability 
to fulfil 
Community 
Leadership role 
 
CR07 - Ability 
to support 
children and 
family 
aspirations 
 

Sam’s Place 

Customer service 
strategy/action 

plan 

Discretionary 
services – 

Parndon Wood 
Nature Reserve 
and Town Park  
Safeguarding 
(deferred from 

16/17) 

 

Anti-Social 
Behaviour 

(deferred from 
16/17) 

Customer 
Services 

Leah Manning 
Centre (if it 

becomes self-
funding) 

 

Community 
Safety (last audit 

14/15) 

Playhouse (as 
new partnership 
arrangements 
should be in 

place)  

Harlow Museum 
including Science 

Alive 

Financial and budgetary controls 
within Sam’s Place will be assessed 
early in 17/18 before it goes out to 
tender.  

Internal Audit will provide oversight 
and challenge in the delivery of the 
customer service action plan.  

Discretionary services will look at in 
detail key risk areas for a sample of 
services including partnership and 
funding arrangements and more 
operational aspects such as H&S. 

The 17/18 safeguarding review will 
ensure for children and vulnerable 
adults the Council has adequate 
assurances including training in 
place.  

Anti-Social Behaviour in 18/19 will 
be a corporate review to ensure a 
consistent approach across the 
Council include housing. 

Regeneration and 
Enterprise Zone 
 
 

CR02 - The 
Harlow Offer 
 
CR06 - Lack of 
Resources and 
Capacity, 
Council and key 
partners 
 

Priority estates 

 

Town Centre 
regeneration 

Enterprise Zone 
(last audit 16/17) 

Each year IA will provide 
assurances on at least one aspect 
of regeneration and growth 
(including the Enterprise Zone) due 
to the monetary values involved and 
long lead in times. In 17/18 delivery 
of the Council’s Priority Estate 
schemes. 
 

89



Page 8 of 9 
 

Audit Area  and 
Context 

Corporate Risks 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Outline/Scope of work for 17/18 (to 
be finalised when the work is 
scoped) 

Place: 
Properties, 
facilities & projects 
Properties & 
estates 
Operations, energy 
& emergency 
planning 
Planning & 
Building Control 
Environmental 
Health 
Licensing 
Street Scene 
 
 
 

CR06 - Lack of 
Resources and 
Capacity, 
Council and key 
partners 

 

Council building 
repairs and 
maintenance 

 

 

Asset 
management 
strategy 
(including 
acquisitions and 
disposals) 

Parks and 
landscapes and 
Streetscene 
(following creation 
of the new 
delivery model) 

Waste and 
recycling as 
replacement for 
current Veolia 
contract should 
be in place 

 

 

Commercial 
property – rent 
reviews 

Planning and 
Building Control 

Development 
Management 

Energy 
management (last 
audit 14/15) 

Disabled Facilities 
Grants (last audit 
14/15) 

 

17/18 assess adequacy of the 
transition to HTS maintenance of 
Council properties including 
statutory H&S testing requirements 
such as gas safety, fire risk 
assessments, legionella and lifts.  

Governance: 
Corporate & 
Governance 
Support 
Legal Services 
Electoral Services 
Human Resources 
Procurement & 
Relationship 
(covered 

Risk of 
corporate 
priorities not 
being met 
should these 
service areas 
fail to deliver.   

Mostly covered 
elsewhere in the 

plan 
 

HR – Absence 
management 

 
 
 

HR - Staff 
performance 
management 

(including 
appraisal 

arrangements) 
 

HR – starters, 
movers and 

leavers. 
 

HR absence management will 
include arrangements to manage 
sickness absence. 

90



Page 9 of 9 
 

Audit Area  and 
Context 

Corporate Risks 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Outline/Scope of work for 17/18 (to 
be finalised when the work is 
scoped) 

elsewhere in the 
plan) 
Policy & 
Performance 
(covered under 
performance 
management) 
Finance: 
Revenues & 
Benefits (covered 
under KFC audits) 
ICT (covered 
elsewhere in the 
plan) 
Accountancy (see 
also KFC audits) 
Insurance 

CR01 (Financial 
resilience) 

Agresso upgrade 
– budget module 

Insurance (last 
audit 13/14) 

 

Finance – 
Budgetary 

control/financial 
management (last 

audit 14/15) 
 

IA will maintain a watching brief as 
the Agresso upgrade continues with 
the new budget module in 17/18. 
 
18/19 insurance audit will also 
consider the arrangements the 
Council has in providing insurance 
services to HTS. 
 
The 18/19 audit on budgetary 
control/financial management will 
take into account  

Follow Up Audits 
 
Review of 
progress against 
recommendations 
on the tracker 

Tracker process 
ensures risks 
identified in 
audits have 
been managed 
to an 
acceptable 
level.  

   Includes specific follow up work 
especially where Limited assurance 
previously given. Includes 
maintaining the recommendation 
tracker which is reported to each 
Audit Committee. 

 

91



REPORT TO: AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

DATE: 8 MARCH 2017 

TITLE: INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY REPORT  

LEAD OFFICER: 

 

SARAH MARSH, INTERNAL AUDIT 
MANAGER (01279) 446884 

 

RECOMMENDED that: 

A The Committee agrees the suggestion to drop or defer a number of audits as 
detailed in paragraph 1 of the report. 

B  A skills and knowledge analysis be undertaken by the Committee and to 
consider the outcome of the results at its next meeting.  

PROGRESS AGAINST AUDIT PLAN 

1. Good progress continues to be made against the 2016/17 Audit Plan as detailed 
in Appendix A, which includes additional audits. Internal audit has received a 
number of management requests to defer particular audits for good business 
reasons. The Audit and Standards Committee is requested to approve the 
deferral of the audits detailed below: 

 
(i) Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) – To ensure staff resources within 

Housing are available and to widen the scope to ensure there is a 
joined approach to ASB across the Council. 
 

(ii) Leah Manning Centre – New funding arrangements from Essex County 
Council are still to be confirmed.  
 

(iii) Regeneration: Priority Estates – Internal audit has focussed instead on 
the Enterprise Zone this year due to its risk profile. 
 

(iv) Home Ownership and Leaseholders – Home ownership has already 
been subject to audit this year as part of the external works audit. 
 

(v) Safeguarding – Scoping for this audit is in progress but due to staffing 
constraints within internal audit, fieldwork will not commence until early 
2017/18. Early indications are that there are no obvious control 
weaknesses within current processes. 

 
2. It is important that sufficient audit work is undertaken in order that the Internal 

Audit Manager can give their annual opinion. It is expected that despite the need 
to defer or drop a number of audits there will still be sufficient coverage through 
the remaining audits and internal audit’s proactive work, to enable the opinion to 
be provided for 2016/17. This will be kept under constant review in conjunction 
with the Corporate Governance Group. 

 

92

Agenda Item 13



3. It is envisaged that the work for the remainder of this year’s Audit Plan will be 
completed in time for year-end reporting to the July Audit and Standards 
Committee. 

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 

4. The following reports have been issued since the Committee received its last 
update in November 2016: 

 
(i) Project Audit – Enterprise Zone (Substantial Assurance) – The audit 

examined finance controls, risk management and governance 
arrangements surrounding this high profile project, which requires a 
long term financial commitment from the Council.  Controls over project 
expenditure were found to be satisfactory. The audit also found 
adequate governance arrangements in place, including robust 
monitoring information and reporting to partners, although formal 
minutes of weekly management meetings would improve this. The 
audit found that although risks have been identified, they have not all 
been subject to a formal risk scoring process, which should be 
addressed in due course through the use of the new InPhase system.  
Finally, the required annual review of business rate relief, awarded in 
accordance with Council policy, was found not to have been formally 
evidenced, which management will address to prevent loss of income. 
 

(ii) Housing – External Works and Section 20 (Substantial Assurance) – 
The audit looked at programme management within Housing Services 
using the External Works Programme as an example. It also sought to 
examine the effectiveness of controls in place to ensure fair and 
appropriate recharges to leaseholders. Strong governance 
arrangements, including direct Head of Service involvement, clear 
reporting lines, a dedicated Savills-Harlow project team, and regular 
performance reporting ensure that both management and Councillors 
retain effective oversight of the programme. Robust contract 
management and monitoring arrangements within Savills-Harlow 
ensure that the principal contractor’s work is delivered to the 
appropriate standards within acceptable timescales and billed only 
when independently verified as such. The close working relationship 
between the Savills-Harlow project team and the Home Ownership 
team ensures up-front consideration of affordability for leaseholders, 
prompt consultation with leaseholders and comprehensive disclosure 
of available works information. 
 

(iii) Housing Health & Safety – Gas Safety (Substantial Assurance) - The 
Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulation requires all permanent 
and portable gas appliances to have an annual safety check. Failure to 
comply with this may result the in prosecution leading to financial 
penalties and reputational damage. Internal audit found robust 
operational controls in place to ensure the Council’s housing stock is 
effectively managed in line with this legislation. Audit noted sufficient 
contact between the Council and its contractor (Kier Harlow) which has 
ensured adequate monitoring and reporting in line with policy and 

93



procedure notes. It is important that this should continue with the 
transfer over to Harlow Trading Services (Property and Environment) 
Ltd. 

 
ONGOING AUDIT WORK 

5. A number of assignments in the 2016-17 Audit Plan are intended to provide 
advice and guidance to the Council throughout the year on current issues. As 
these assignments will not normally result in a single, traditional audit report 
internal audit will summarise its output here for Councillors’ information: 

 
(i) Agresso Upgrade Project – Internal audit continues to provide control 

advice and act as a critical friend to the project team. There were some 
issues around the interface with other systems that needed resolving 
prior to the go-live date, which could not be allowed to slip. Through the 
use of the shared service, the Internal Audit Manager was able to 
provide the necessary resource at short notice to advise on these 
issues.  
 

(ii) Housing Fraud – Quarterly meetings of the Housing Fraud Group 
continue, of which internal audit is a member. The Group is currently 
exploring data matching opportunities to help in the detection of fraud 
as well inputting to a Fraud Action Plan which will support and help 
deliver the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy which was 
approved at the November 2016 Audit and Standards Committee 
meeting.  
 

(iii) In-Phase Project – The Internal Audit Manager continues to advise on 
the implementation of the new system through the Corporate 
Governance Group and close working with the project manager.  
 

(iv) Information Asset Register – Internal audit is supporting the Legal 
Services Manager who is coordinating this project to ensure that the 
Council can ensure compliance with the forthcoming General Data 
Protection Regulation when it comes into force May 2018. The initial 
phase of the project is to design a suitable register to capture all 
information held by the Council, and then working with managers to 
populate it.  
 

(v) Cash Office – Internal audit is providing advice and acts as a critical 
friend as changes are made to the cash office as part of the Customer 
Service Review. In the first instance, internal audit is comparing the 
way the Council and Epping Forest District Councils manage their 
AllPay accounts to help inform the project.  
 

(vi) Payroll/HR – Internal audit is assisting the Council in assessing the 
functionality of any proposed payroll/HR system. 
 

(vii) Service Assurance Statements – Internal audit is co-ordinating the 
process to ensure service assurance statements are completed by 
each head of service and their managers. The results of these will be 

94



analysed by internal audit and the results fed into the 2016/17 Annual 
Governance Statement which will come to this committee in July.  

 
RECOMMENDATION TRACKER 

6. The Audit and Standards Committees receives details of all overdue 
recommendations, plus any fundamental/high recommendations from final 
reports, regardless of whether they are overdue or not. This tracker does not 
feature those recommendations made in very recent reports as these are in the 
process of being finalised.   
 

7. The current tracker (see Appendix B) contains 11 recommendations passed their 
due date (compared to 12 in November 2016). 

Recommendation Priority Number (as 
at February 
2017) 

Fundamental/High - not yet due 0 
Fundamental/High - passed due date 0 
Significant/Medium - passed due date 8 
Requires Attention/Low - passed due date 3 

 
8. The tracker also includes one greyed-out fundamental recommendation for 

information as the relating to Right To Buy is now complete.  

EXTERNAL QUALITY ASSESSMENT (EQA) AND INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 
REVIEW  

9. Each year the Internal Audit Charter is reviewed to ensure it remains up to date 
and relevant. The Charter sets out the purpose, authority and responsibility of 
internal audit. This was last undertaken and presented to the Audit and 
Standards Committee in November 2015. 
 

10. It was agreed at the November 2016 meeting to delay this year’s annual review 
until the outcomes from the independent External Quality Assessment (EQA) 
was known. A paper on the EQA forms part of the agenda elsewhere and the 
EQA determined that the internal audit function was compliant with the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards. Part of the EQA process included a review of 
the current Internal Audit Charter (Appendix C) and no deficiencies or 
enhancements required were noted by the assessor. On this basis no changes 
to the current Internal Audit Charter are required. 

INTERNAL AUDIT SHARED SERVICE 

11. The Internal Audit Manager continues to oversee the delivery of internal audit 
services for Epping Forest District Council (EFDC), Broxbourne Borough Council 
(BBC) and the Council, with the cost of this post being shared equally.  

12. The Council does not directly employ its own audit staff, instead sharing the use 
and cost of BBC’s auditors through a formal agreement. This consists of the 
Audit Manager, two Senior Auditors and an Auditor. A recruitment process has 
been completed for the Senior Auditor that left before Christmas with the new 

95



appointment starting in February. Following a tendering process a professional 
firm has been brought in to help complete the Audit Plan at both the Council and 
BBC. The cost of this being covered by the vacancy.  

13. A formal shared service between the three Councils, with BBC being the host 
authority, is still on target to commence 1 April 2017 following EFDC’s Cabinet 
decision in December 2016. EFDC employs one Senior Auditor and two Auditors 
but auditors from both Councils work across all three authorities. 

AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE SKILLS AND KNOWLEDGE ANALYSIS 

14. There is a range of knowledge and experience that Audit and Standards 
Committee members can bring to the Committee and which will enable it to 
perform effectively. No one Committee member would be expected to be expert 
in all areas, but there are core areas of knowledge that Committee members will 
need to acquire through training or briefings. 
 

15. At its 23 November 2016 meeting the Audit and Standards Committee agreed it 
would be beneficial for the Committee to evaluate its overall knowledge and 
skills, which in turn can be used to guide members on their training needs.  

16. A suggested template to collate this information is attached as Appendix D  
which makes a distinction between core areas of knowledge that all Committee 
members should seek to acquire and a range of specialisms that can add value 
to the Committee. If approved, the Internal Audit Manager would circulate the 
checklist and collate responses with an anonymised summary presented at the 
July 2017 Audit and Standards Committee meeting. 

 

IMPLICATIONS 

Place (includes Sustainability) 
None specific. 
Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Place 

Finance (includes ICT) 
It is important that the organisation responds to and implements the 
recommendations flowing from the internal audit process in order to protect and 
improve the overall internal control environment of the Council. 
Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance  

Housing 
None specific. 
Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 

Community Wellbeing (includes Regeneration, Equalities and Social Inclusion) 
None specific. 
Author: Jane Greer, Head of Community Wellbeing 

Governance (includes HR) 

96



Internal Audit provides a key element of assurance within the overall Governance 
framework within the Council and it is important that recommendations flowing from 
internal audit recommendations are acted upon and implemented within reasonable 
timescales if reliance on internal controls and procedures is to continue. 
Author: Brian Keane, Head of Governance 

Background Papers 

Internal Audit Plan and Internal Audit monitoring reports 

Appendices 

Appendix A – Audit Plan Monitoring 

Appendix B – Audit Recommendations Tracker 

Appendix C – Internal Audit Charter 

Appendix D - Knowledge and skills analysis for Harlow Audit Committee Members 

97



Page 1 of 1

Appendix A - Audit Plan Monitoring 2016-17                        
February 2017

Risk Area
Plan 
Days Status Fi

el
dw

or
k 

st
ar

te
d

R
ep

or
t i

ss
ue

d 
to

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t

Fi
na

lis
ed

O
pi

ni
on

: L
ev

el
 o

f 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l /

 H
ig

h

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
/ M

ed
iu

m

R
eq

ui
re

s 
A

tte
nt

io
n/

 
Lo

w

Quarters 1 & 2 
Key Financial Controls - Housing Rents Finance 10 Final report    Substantial 0 1 1
Latton Bush Cash Handling (NEW) Place 3 Final report    Limited 0 2 0
Building Control Out of Hours Service - Follow Up (NEW) Place 4 Final report    n/a - follow up - - -
Officer Interests, Gifts & Hospitality (NEW) Corporate 3 Final report    n/a - memorandum - - -
General Data Protection Regulation (NEW) Corporate 4 Final report    n/a - memorandum - - -
Supported Housing - Access Control (NEW AUDIT at mgt request) Housing 5 Final report    Substantial 0 0 2
Health & Safety - Lone Working Governance 12 Final report    Moderate 0 3 1
Information Governance & Mgt - External Data Transfers ICT 10 Final report    Moderate 0 4 4 
Project audit - Enterprise Zone Community Wellbeing 8 Draft report   Substantial 0 3 4

Quarters 3 & 4
Housing - External Works & Section 20 Housing 12 Final report    Substantial 0 1 1
Housing Health & Safety - Gas Safety Housing 10 Final report    Substantial 0 1 0
IT Disaster Recovery Finance 10 In progress 
Key Financial Controls - Council Tax Finance 10 In progress 
Key Financial Controls - Business Rates Finance 10 In progress 
Key Financial Controls - Housing Benefits Finance 10 In progress 
Key Financial Controls - Payroll Finance 10 In progress 
Key Financial Controls - Debtors Finance 10 In progress 
Licensing Place 10 In progress 
Information Governance & Management - Data Retention & Disposals Corporate 20 Scoping
Safeguarding Community Wellbeing 10 Scoping

Totals 0 15 13

Defer to 17/18 subject to Audit and Standards Ctte approval
Anti-Social Behaviour Housing 15
Regeneration - Priority Estates Corporate 12
Home Ownership & Leaseholders Housing 15
Leah Manning Centre Community Wellbeing 10

Key
Mgt = Management

Recommendations by 
priority

98



Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker (overdue and fundamental)  Appendix B 
Last Updated: 08 February 2017 

Page 1 of 12 
 

Audit 
Year  
(Date report 
issued) 

Rec 
Ref 

Original 
Recommendation 

Priority Original Managers 
Response 

Responsible 
Officer/  
Head of 
Service 

Agreed Imp 
Date 

Revised 
Imp 

Date(s) 

Status Update from 
Management 

Status 

Water 
Gardens Car 
Park 

(November 
2014) 

 

1 On an annual basis 
ensure the Council 
receives an 
independent 
accountant’s report 
verifying net takings 
payable to the 
Council. 
This should be 
compared to 
management 
information supplied 
and challenged 
where there is a 
discrepancy. 
 
Pragmatically the 
last three years (i.e. 
from 2011/12) 
should suffice if 
there are no 
significant 
discrepancies. 

Significant The new managing 
agents have 
confirmed that 
income will be 
externally audited as 
part of our 
procedures. This will 
be going back the 
three years as 
recommended. 
 
 

Properties, 
Facilities & 
Projects 
Manager/ 
Head of 
Place 

28/02/15 31/07/15 
31/10/15 
31/03/16 
30/09/16 
31/03/17 

Feb/Aug15: Working with the 
new management company to 
ensure this is actioned. 
Nov15/June16: Finance 
review of in year receipts now 
completed with the new 
managing agents. Information 
reporting and net receipts 
protocols have been revised 
and are now dealt with 
monthly.  Three years Audited 
accounts requested from new 
managing agents.  
Aug16: The Managing Agent 
is of the opinion that it is the 
Council’s responsibility to 
cover the cost of appointing 
auditors to verify income due 
to the Council and is seeking 
legal advice. 
Nov16: Awaiting response 
from management agent 
Feb 17: Managing Agent is 
aware of their obligations and 
negotiations are ongoing to 
ensure this happens. 
 

Overdue 
 
 

Corporate 
Business 
Continuity 
Plan – Follow 
Up 

(May 2015) 

3 & 
4 

Business Continuity 
Plans (BCPs) to be 
developed for each 
service area and 
reviewed by an 
independent officer 
to ensure that: 
• they are 

appropriate, 

Significant Heads of Service to 
be given a revised 
deadline of 31 May 
2013 (via the Senior 
Management Team 
meetings) to submit 
their service level 
BCPs. These can 
then be reviewed for 

Operations 
Manager/ 
Emergency 
Planning 
Officer/ 
Head of 
Place 

31/08/13 31/08/15 
31/03/16 
31/07/16 
30/09/16 
30/04/17  

May/Oct15: BCP template 
and guidance was reissued to 
managers in  April 2015 
Heads of Service/Third Tier 
Managers working with 
Operations Manager to update 
service level plans to ensure 
all activities are reviewed  
Feb16: Plans exist in draft 

Overdue 

99



Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker (overdue and fundamental)  Appendix B 
Last Updated: 08 February 2017 

Page 2 of 12 
 

Audit 
Year  
(Date report 
issued) 

Rec 
Ref 

Original 
Recommendation 

Priority Original Managers 
Response 

Responsible 
Officer/  
Head of 
Service 

Agreed Imp 
Date 

Revised 
Imp 

Date(s) 

Status Update from 
Management 

Status 

complete and 
have been 
prepared to a 
consistent 
standard. 

• there are no 
interdependencies 
that would prevent 
services being 
reinstated in 
accordance with 
their BCPs. 

 

completeness/ 
interdependencies 
and services asked 
to strengthen their 
plans where 
appropriate. 
 

form for all 5 service areas, 
with some Plans still awaiting 
migration to the new template. 
June/Nov16: Housing is 
intending to set up some 
workshops for its Senior 
Management Team to work 
through the new corporate 
template to ensure it is 
completed correctly and 
covers all areas of Housing. 
Unfortunately this has been 
delayed due to the corporate 
priority of mobilising HTS. It is 
proposed to pick this up again 
once HTS is in operation. In 
the meantime, Housing 
Services Emergency Planning 
arrangements (which are 
reviewed and updated 
annually by the Senior 
Housing Management Team) 
give assurance there is a 
continuity plan in an 
emergency. 
Feb 17: Housing services 
have an existing business 
continuity plan. Workshops 
have been planned in 
February for Housing for all 
areas of business to transfer 
to revised corporate 
requirements  and it is 
intended that separate BCP’s 
will be implemented for each 
service whilst being kept 

100



Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker (overdue and fundamental)  Appendix B 
Last Updated: 08 February 2017 

Page 3 of 12 
 

Audit 
Year  
(Date report 
issued) 

Rec 
Ref 

Original 
Recommendation 

Priority Original Managers 
Response 

Responsible 
Officer/  
Head of 
Service 

Agreed Imp 
Date 

Revised 
Imp 

Date(s) 

Status Update from 
Management 

Status 

under one Housing BCP 
document. As all workshops 
are taking place throughout 
February It is expected that 
BCP’s will be completed by 
beginning of April 17. 
 

Corporate 
Business 
Continuity 
Plan – Follow 
Up 

(May 2015) 

5 Each service needs 
to develop a 
timetable to test its 
BCP. This testing 
process needs to be 
managed centrally 
to ensure:  
• Testing is carried 

out as planned 
• Outcomes of the 

testing is recorded 
• Action plans are 

developed to 
address any 
failures/weakness
es 

• BCPs (Service 
and Corporate) 
reviewed and 
updated as 
necessary post 
testing, and 
periodically 
thereafter  
 

Significant A methodology for 
testing the BCPs will 
be determined by 31 
March 2014 and a 
timetable developed 
to test each plan 
during April – June 
2014. 

Operations 
Manager/ 
Property 
and 
Facilities 
Manager/ 
Head of 
Place 

31/03/14 01/11/15 
30/04/16 
31/07/16 
31/03/17 
01/05/17 

May15: Some testing of 
Council systems has been 
carried out as part of 
Emergency Planning (e.g. 
emergency power supplies at 
the Civic Centre, 
comprehensive ICT testing at 
Latton Bush and mutual aid 
support with other Essex 
districts). 
Aug15/Jun16: Whilst service 
level plans are being 
completed testing cannot take 
place (see rec 4), however 
joint working with Chelmsford 
CC around ICT recovery will 
see some testing in this area 
in 2016. . 
Aug/Nov16: Joint working 
with Chelmsford CC around 
ICT recovery has stalled. The 
implementation date is revised 
to the end of the financial year 
so that Harlow Council can 
explore other arrangements. It 
is now anticipated that testing 
of other plans can take place 
before the Housing Services 
BCP is received. 

Overdue  

101



Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker (overdue and fundamental)  Appendix B 
Last Updated: 08 February 2017 

Page 4 of 12 
 

Audit 
Year  
(Date report 
issued) 

Rec 
Ref 

Original 
Recommendation 

Priority Original Managers 
Response 

Responsible 
Officer/  
Head of 
Service 

Agreed Imp 
Date 

Revised 
Imp 

Date(s) 

Status Update from 
Management 

Status 

Feb 17: Slow progress has 
been made with ICT due to 
HTS transition commitments 
and will be reviewed post 
February. It is the Council’s 
intention to still work with 
Chelmsford City Council to 
ensure systems can be 
mirrored or other options 
explored if this cannot be 
implemented with Chelmsford. 
In the meantime progress with 
bcp and testing is being 
monitored by the Corporate 
Governance Group.  
 

Community 
Safety 

(June 2015) 

2a The Safer Harlow 
Partnership needs to 
locate, review and 
update and overall 
governance 
document that sets 
out statutory roles, 
stakeholders, 
frequency of 
meeting, voting 
arrangements and 
other Partnership 
governance and 
administrative 
arrangements.   

Significant Will review and 
update 
documentation. 

Community 
Safety Team 
Manager/ 
Head of 
Community 
Wellbeing 

30/09/15 31/01/16 
30/06/16 
31/10/16 
31/03/17 
30/06/17 

Oct/Feb16: A full SHP or RAG 
meeting is needed prior to 
final agreement.  
June/Nov16: The SHP 
Coordinator post was made 
redundant in March 2016, due 
to a reduction in funding, and 
remaining staff resources 
have had to be prioritised on 
other activities. As agreed with 
Internal Audit, this document 
will now be in place by the end 
of the financial year.   
Feb 17: Harlow Council is still 
attempting to obtain data from 
the police in order to 
undertake the Strategic 
Assessment that is required.  
This has been escalated by 
Harlow Council, and will be 

Overdue 102



Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker (overdue and fundamental)  Appendix B 
Last Updated: 08 February 2017 

Page 5 of 12 
 

Audit 
Year  
(Date report 
issued) 

Rec 
Ref 

Original 
Recommendation 

Priority Original Managers 
Response 

Responsible 
Officer/  
Head of 
Service 

Agreed Imp 
Date 

Revised 
Imp 

Date(s) 

Status Update from 
Management 

Status 

escalated to the next level at 
the police w/c 30/1/17.  Until 
this information is received it is 
not possible to progress. 
 

Community 
Partnerships  

(August 2015) 

2 The Council’s 
current (dormant) 
partnerships policy 
to be developed into 
a toolkit which would 
be of practical user 
to managers 
involved in 
partnership, to 
include: 
• A checklist of 

practical steps for 
manager to follow 

• Example 
templates to help 
embed good 
governance and 
risk management 
practices (as 
recommended in 
2011). 

A programme of 
awareness-raising 
should follow.  

Significant A partnerships 
protocol will be 
developed as 
recommended, in 
conjunction with the 
Partnerships Lead 
at Broxbourne 
Council, by the end 
of the current 
financial year. 
We will raise 
awareness of the 
new protocol 
through the Infonet, 
the Weekly 
Information Sheet 
and Third Tier 
Managers meetings, 
beginning in April 
2016, and offer 
Community 
Wellbeing as a point 
of contact for advice 
and guidance. 
 

Head of 
Community 
Wellbeing 

31/5/16 31/03/17 
31/05/17 

Jun/Nov 16: As discussed 
with Internal Audit, in view of 
the recent tragic incident in the 
Town Park, and the health 
and safety audit that is to be 
commissioned, it is considered 
better to await the outcome of 
this so that the protocol can 
encompass findings and 
recommendations from this. 
Feb 17: Safety audit is being 
commissioned from HTS 
during February 2017. 
 
 

Overdue 

Business 
Planning 

(September 
2015) 

1, 
3,4 
& 5  

As part of the 
service planning 
database project, 
Service Plans 
should be enhanced 
by:-  

Significant  It should be possible 
to link the budget 
proposals for the 
forthcoming year to 
the business plan 
process placing an 

Performance 
Team  
Leader (or 
designate) 

31/03/16 30/09/16 
31/03/17 

June16: The Service Planning 
and Risk Management 
elements of Inphase are 
nearly ready for user testing. 
Corporate Risks are on the 
system and regularly updated 

Overdue  

103



Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker (overdue and fundamental)  Appendix B 
Last Updated: 08 February 2017 

Page 6 of 12 
 

Audit 
Year  
(Date report 
issued) 

Rec 
Ref 

Original 
Recommendation 

Priority Original Managers 
Response 

Responsible 
Officer/  
Head of 
Service 

Agreed Imp 
Date 

Revised 
Imp 

Date(s) 

Status Update from 
Management 

Status 

• Improving the 
level of financial 
detail to    include: 
meeting financial 
targets; mitigating 
potential service 
income 
shortfall/overspen
d, especially on 
demand led 
services; 
delivering planned 
savings in year; 
and planning for 
subsequent years’ 
savings delivery. 

• Developing 
arrangements to 
embed risk 
management in 
Service Plans.  

• Reviewing the role 
of Heads of 
Service and Policy 
& Performance in 
reviewing and 
updating Service 
Plans.  

• Developing 
detailed 
procedural 
guidance to go on 
the intranet on 
how Service Plans 
should be 
developed and 

expectation on 
budget holders and 
those completing 
the service plans to 
consider the 
financial impacts of 
the budget decisions 
etc. 
The InPhase project 
will manage service 
based risk 
management and 
reporting in to the 
system. 
Detailed guidance is 
already available on 
Infonet, however 
given the project 
currently underway 
to replace the SPD it 
may need updating 
once procedures are 
defined and 
operational. The 
information will be 
re-designated as a 
policy framework 
rather than 
“guidance” and 
launched to 
correspond with the 
new service 
planning tool. 

to enable reporting for JFPR.  
Once agreed by Governance 
Group/HoS and users, the 
new ways of working for 
Service Planning/ Risk/ 
Performance Monitoring/ 
JFPR reporting will be 
documented along with the 
revised Performance 
Management Framework. 
Aug16: Meetings being 
arranged to take user test 
group through system and 
proposed with HoS to enable 
existing Service objectives/ 
actions/ milestones within 
SPD to be transferred to 
InPhase. Service Risks will 
require creation along with 
Service plan objectives during 
user tester/HoS discussions. 
As discussed at the Risk 
Group on 1 Aug 2016, 
performance framework 
update to lie with Governance/ 
P&P (including Service 
Planning framework and 
guidance to be launched with 
InPhase). 
Nov16: Service Plans 
(objectives/actions/milestones) 
were transferred to InPhase 
August 2016 to enable 1Q16 
JFPR production. For 2Q16, 
P&P are liaising with 
Services/HOS to show how to 

104



Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker (overdue and fundamental)  Appendix B 
Last Updated: 08 February 2017 

Page 7 of 12 
 

Audit 
Year  
(Date report 
issued) 

Rec 
Ref 

Original 
Recommendation 

Priority Original Managers 
Response 

Responsible 
Officer/  
Head of 
Service 

Agreed Imp 
Date 

Revised 
Imp 

Date(s) 

Status Update from 
Management 

Status 

approved. 
• annual objectives 

to be developed 
as SMART 
(specific, 
measurable, 
achievable 
realistic and time 
bound) objectives. 

 

update milestones RAG 
indicators within InPhase. 
Service risks are still to be 
reviewed in line with new risk 
layout and input (as agreed 
and already implemented for 
Corporate Risks in 2015). 
Feb17: Heads of Service have 
had training on updating 
milestone indicators.  They 
have updated 2Q16 and will 
be updating 3Q16 in next two 
weeks.  Corporate Risks are 
being updated within InPhase.  
Third Tier Managers have had 
short demo overview of 
InPhase.  Team plans are 
being transferred from Service 
Planning Database to InPhase 
and 2017 Service Planning is 
due to be updated in InPhase 
with assistance from P&P and 
Project Team along with 
training sessions for Service 
Managers.  It will remain the 
responsibility of Heads of 
Service to ensure objectives 
link to Corporate Goals or 
‘Discharge of Statutory Duties’ 
objective.  Similarly Team 
Managers to ensure team 
plans relate to Service 
objectives as required.  
Service Heads and Team 
Managers will be responsible 
for monitoring actions and 

105



Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker (overdue and fundamental)  Appendix B 
Last Updated: 08 February 2017 

Page 8 of 12 
 

Audit 
Year  
(Date report 
issued) 

Rec 
Ref 

Original 
Recommendation 

Priority Original Managers 
Response 

Responsible 
Officer/  
Head of 
Service 

Agreed Imp 
Date 

Revised 
Imp 

Date(s) 

Status Update from 
Management 

Status 

milestones and ensuring 
quarterly updates are made 
within InPhase to facilitate the 
Joint Finance and 
Performance Report output. 
 

Human 
Resources - 
Recruitment 

(September 
2015) 

2 Recruitment training 
should be provided 
to recruiting 
managers and 
evidenced. 

Requires 
Attention 

Agreed. Online 
training programme 
to be created on 
Wisenet and sent 
out to new 
managers with 
recruiting 
responsibilities. 
Certificate will be 
issued at the end of 
the course and a 
copy will be placed 
in individual files. 

HR Manager 
/Head of 
Governance 

31/03/16 31/12/16 
30/06/17 

Jun/Nov16: Due to staff 
shortages meeting has been 
postponed until Sept 16 to 
discuss and prepare online 
training programme via 
Wisenet.  Estimate completion 
date Dec 16. Existing Wisenet 
training course ‘Preventing 
illegal Working’ will also be 
reviewed. In the meantime, 
the HR Advisor meets, on an 
ongoing basis, with recruiting 
managers to give one to one 
advice and guidance on the 
recruitment process. 
Feb 17: Trial of online training 
within HR complete, following 
which a few edits are to be 
completed.  Thereafter identify 
small trial of few new 
managers to be undertaken in 
February 2017.  
 

Overdue  
 

Commercial 
Rents  

(October 2015) 

14 Document all 
tenants rent files 
with a template 
showing the 
processes, controls, 
decisions and 
documentation for 

Significant In line with 
recommendation 3 
Latton Bush Staff 
will be trained by the 
end of Sept 15.  
Following this 
training the team will 

Latton Bush 
Service 
Manager/ 
Head of 
Place 

29/02/16 30/09/16 
31/12/16 
01/04/17 

Feb16: Training has been 
booked for 25/2/16 and the 
Council is looking to purchase 
an addition module for TF for 
bookings, which will require 
data being uploaded into it 
which will be resource 

Overdue  
 

106



Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker (overdue and fundamental)  Appendix B 
Last Updated: 08 February 2017 

Page 9 of 12 
 

Audit 
Year  
(Date report 
issued) 

Rec 
Ref 

Original 
Recommendation 

Priority Original Managers 
Response 

Responsible 
Officer/  
Head of 
Service 

Agreed Imp 
Date 

Revised 
Imp 

Date(s) 

Status Update from 
Management 

Status 

rent reviews. work to transfer all 
tenant data onto the 
TF system. 

intensive.  
June/ Aug16: The meeting in 
Feb 16 took place with 
Technology Forge who 
presented a Cloud base 
system which was rejected by 
IT. There is still a requirement 
to train staff so they can input 
onto the TF system.  
Nov16: The Property Register 
has been updated for 
individual office suites and 
business units. Leaseholder 
information will need inputting 
which will be resource 
intensive.  
Feb 17: The individual lettable 
units have been successfully 
set up on Technology Forge, 
however the tenancy 
information has not yet been 
populated. Agreed Internal 
Audit will follow up to assess 
the risk of continuing the use 
of the spreadsheet. 
 
 

Energy 
Management  

(Nov 2015) 

3 & 
GP1 

To ensure 
resilience: 
• Ensure written 

procedures cover 
the full range of 
processes (from 
energy data 
capture to 
publishing C02 

Requires 
Attention  

Procedures already 
in place will be 
enhanced to provide 
more detail as to 
where each data 
source can be 
located and how it 
should be entered 
into the spreadsheet 

Operations 
Manager/ 
Head of 
Place 

31/07/16 31/12/16 
01/05/17 

May/Aug16: Energy 
management processes have 
been discussed in detail 
between the Operations 
Manager and the Projects 
Manager (HTS). This year’s 
data has been produced by 
the Operations Manager and 
validated by the Projects 

Overdue  
 

107



Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker (overdue and fundamental)  Appendix B 
Last Updated: 08 February 2017 

Page 10 of 12 
 

Audit 
Year  
(Date report 
issued) 

Rec 
Ref 

Original 
Recommendation 

Priority Original Managers 
Response 

Responsible 
Officer/  
Head of 
Service 

Agreed Imp 
Date 

Revised 
Imp 

Date(s) 

Status Update from 
Management 

Status 

emissions) 
• Ensure that a 

deputy is 
designated who is 
also familiar with 
the process 

• Document and 
implement 
additional steps to 
ensure the 
integrity of 
spreadsheet data, 
including validation 
(e.g. number 
range), check 
sums and adopting 
version control 
rather than saving 
a master copy 
each time. 

tool. This will include 
checking of sums 
and using version 
control instead of 
master documents. 
Consideration of 
designating a 
deputy for the 
process will be 
based on time and 
financial resources, 
but the existence of 
more detailed 
procedures may 
negate the need for 
this in any case. 

Manager (HTS); therefore two 
managers now have a 
detailed knowledge of the 
process.  
To further improve resilience 
procedures, including 
improvements to spreadsheet 
integrity, will be documented 
in due course but this is 
dependent on resources.  
Oct-Nov 16: Time has been 
scheduled in November to 
detail all processes in 
capturing emissions data, 
devise a flow chart and 
produce a how to guide.  
On track for completion by end 
December.   
Feb 17: Written procedures 
document is currently in draft 
format and are to be reviewed 
before being signed off. 
Production of document has 
been delayed due to HTS 
transition commitments. 
 

Right To Buy 

(March 2016) 

1 Counter fraud 
measures/processes 
should be 
strengthened within 
the Home 
Ownership Team.  
 

Fundamental We will consider the 
longer term options. 
Enhanced 
procedures to be 
established by, for 
example, recruiting 
a new specialist 
Tenancy 
Enforcement officer 
located in the 

Head of 
Housing 

31/12/16 30/04/17 June/Aug16: Internal 
processes have been 
strengthened, including 
Officers visiting all Right to 
Buy applicants with a revised 
RTB application form to 
reduce the risk of fraud. Fraud 
training from the Corporate 
Fraud Team at Epping Forest 
is being provided to Officers 

Completed 
 

108



Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker (overdue and fundamental)  Appendix B 
Last Updated: 08 February 2017 

Page 11 of 12 
 

Audit 
Year  
(Date report 
issued) 

Rec 
Ref 

Original 
Recommendation 

Priority Original Managers 
Response 

Responsible 
Officer/  
Head of 
Service 

Agreed Imp 
Date 

Revised 
Imp 

Date(s) 

Status Update from 
Management 

Status 

Housing 
Management Team 
with the necessary 
experience. 
 

free of charge as well as 
advice regarding the new 
specialist post of Housing 
Fraud Officer. 
Nov16: New internal 
processes now in operation 
and working well.  Fraud 
training has now taken place 
with all Housing Officers, 
Team Leaders and Managers.  
Recruitment for a Fraud 
Officer within Housing 
Management is due to 
commence in January 17 to 
commence from April 17, this 
will include the creation of a 
new JD and job evaluation 
process. 
Feb 17: Enhanced and 
strengthened internal 
processes are in place and 
working well.  A growth bid for 
a Housing Fraud Officer to 
cover all aspects of Social 
Housing Fraud was approved 
by Cabinet on 26 January 
2017, and a job description, 
employee profile and NJC 
questionnaire has been 
completed for the new role to 
be evaluated, with the 
intention to recruit to post in 
April 2017. 
 
 
 

109



Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker (overdue and fundamental)  Appendix B 
Last Updated: 08 February 2017 

Page 12 of 12 
 

Audit 
Year  
(Date report 
issued) 

Rec 
Ref 

Original 
Recommendation 

Priority Original Managers 
Response 

Responsible 
Officer/  
Head of 
Service 

Agreed Imp 
Date 

Revised 
Imp 

Date(s) 

Status Update from 
Management 

Status 

Housing 
Performance 
Indicators  

(June 2016) 

 

1 Another officer is 
trained on how to 
prepare the 
Performance 
indicator BV66a 
(Rent 
Collected/Rent owed 
(%) to ensure 
continuity of service  

Requires 
attention 

The Business 
Support Team are 
currently 
undertaking a 
recruitment exercise 
to increase capacity. 
Training will be 
provided to Housing 
Business Analysts 
including both 
current and new 
posts when 
appointed.  

Housing 
Asset and 
Business 
Systems 
Manager / 
Head of 
Housing 

31/12/16 30/04/17 Feb 17: Two Housing 
Business Analyst posts were 
filled in November 2016 and 
this training is included on 
their development plan. The 
resources of the team are 
currently being fully utilised for 
the mobilisation of HTS (P&E) 
Ltd and Housing’s Year End 
process. Once these priorities 
are complete they will be 
trained on the process of 
producing BVPI 66a by April 
2017. 
 

Overdue  
 

External Data 
Transfers 
December 
2016 

2b Management 
should ensure that 
adequate data 
sharing protocols/ 
information 
sharing 
agreements are in 
place for Veolia 
and Kier Harlow. 
(HTS) 

Medium  Agreed. 
Veolia – 
Environment and 
Licensing Manager/ 
Head of Place 
 
 
 
Agreed. 
Kier Harlow/ (HTS) -  
Assistant Solicitor/ 
Head of 
Governance 

 

Veolia – 
Environment 
and 
Licensing 
Manager/ 
Head of 
Place 
 
Kier Harlow/ 
(HTS) -  
Assistant 
Solicitor/ 
Head of 
Governance 

31/12/16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

01/02/17 

 Feb 17: Awaiting update.  Overdue  
 

 

110



APPENDIX C 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Harlow Council 
Internal Audit Charter  
 
March 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

111



APPENDIX C 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 
 
1. INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE 
 
1.1 The purpose of this Charter is to set out the nature, role, responsibility, 

status and authority of Internal Audit within Harlow District Council, and to 
outline the scope of internal audit work.  The Charter will also be used to 
monitor the performance of the Internal Audit function. 
 

1.2 The United Kingdom Internal Auditing Standards (UKPSIAS) define 
Internal Auditing as: 

 
‘An independent objective assurance and consulting activity designed to 
add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an 
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, 
control and governance processes’.  
 

1.3 Internal Audit work is conducted in accordance with the UKPSIAS and any 
specific codes and professional guidance including CIPFA’s application 
note in relation to compliance with the UKPSIAS and the Institute of 
Internal Auditors’ Practice Advisories, Practice Guides and Position 
Papers. 
 

2. REVIEW OF THE AUDIT CHARTER 
 
2.1 This Charter will be subject to annual review by the Internal Audit Manager 

and any changes presented to the Audit & Standards Committee for 
approval. 

 
3. ROLE OF INTERNAL AUDIT  

 
3.1 Within local government there is a statutory requirement for an Internal 

Audit function. The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 
require that a local authority ‘must undertake an adequate and effective 
internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control 
in accordance with the proper practices in relation to internal control’. 

 
3.2 In addition, the Council’s Chief Finance Officer has a statutory duty under 

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to establish a clear 
framework for the proper administration of the authority’s financial affairs. 
The S151 Officer relies, amongst other sources, upon the work of Internal 
Audit in reviewing the operation of systems of internal control and financial 
management.  

 
3.3 Internal Audit’s activities and responsibilities are defined and approved by 

the Audit & Standards Committee, via this Charter, as part of their 

112



APPENDIX C 
 

oversight role.  The Internal Audit Manager reports functionally to the 
Head of Finance. In recognising the unique and critical role of the Internal 
Audit Manager, CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal 
Audit (HIA) sets out five key principles for delivering an effective internal 
audit function. Each of these five principles is underpinned by expected 
governance arrangements, core HIA responsibilities and personal and 
professional standards expected of the post holder. As part of the 
continuous assessment of the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function, 
these principles are benchmarked against current practices and reported 
accordingly.  

 
3.4 Internal Audit’s primary role is to assist the Council’s management team, 

particularly the Head of Finance, the Monitoring Officer, the Chief 
Executive and Councillors in the effective discharge of their 
responsibilities. To this end, Internal Audit provides them with analyses, 
appraisals, recommendations, advice and information to enable effective 
control over the activities reviewed, including the Council’s financial affairs.  

 
3.5 Importantly, the Internal Audit Plan culminates in the Internal Audit 

Manager providing an annual audit opinion to Councillors and 
management on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
internal control environment which, in turn, informs the Annual 
Governance Statement.  Internal Audit has a significant role / input into the 
production of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) as part of the 
publication of the Annual Accounts. 

 
3.6 Internal Audit has a role in understanding the key risks of the Council and 

to examine and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems 
of risk management and internal control operated by the Council. 

 
4. MISSION & AIMS OF INTERNAL AUDIT 
 
4.1 The aims of Internal Audit are to: - 
 

• Provide a high quality and effective audit service that is responsive to 
the needs and requirements of Councillors and management; 

• Add value to the Council’s systems by identifying areas for 
improvement and offering advice and assistance to Councillors and 
management to ensure effective systems of internal control; 

• Assist the Council discharge its corporate governance requirements. 
 

5. RESPONSIBILITIES OF INTERNAL AUDIT  
 
5.1 Internal Audit is responsible for: - 
 

• Operating the policies established by management and Councillors. 

113



APPENDIX C 
 

• Conducting its work in accordance with UKPSIAS and associated 
codes of ethics and other guidance for the Professional Practice for 
Internal Auditing. 

• Ensuring that it is appropriately resourced to be able to deliver the 
agreed Audit Plan. 
 

5.2 The delivery of the Internal Audit function is predominantly via in-house 
resources supplemented where necessary by engaging external resources 
to cover for periodic shortfalls or, for example, to provide a specific 
expertise. 

 
6. INDEPENDENCE AND OBJECTIVITY 
 
6.1 Internal Audit will remain free from interference by any element in the 

Council, including matters of audit selection, scope, procedures, 
frequency, timing, or report content to permit maintenance of a necessary 
independent and objective approach to its work. 

 
6.2 Internal auditors will have no direct operational responsibility or authority 

over any of the activities audited. Accordingly, they will not implement 
internal controls, develop procedures, install systems, prepare records, or 
engage in any other activity that may impair their judgment. Internal Audit 
may, however, review systems under development and advise on 
appropriate controls without prejudicing its right to subsequently audit such 
systems. 

 
6.3 The Internal Audit Manager will confirm to the Audit & Standards 

Committee, at least annually, the organisational independence of the 
Internal Audit activity. 

 
7. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 
7.1 Internal auditors must exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in 

gathering, evaluating and communicating information about the activity or 
process being examined. Internal auditors must make a balanced 
assessment of all the relevant circumstances and not be unduly influenced 
by their own interests or by others in forming judgments. 

 
7.2 Each auditor is required to proactively declare any potential ‘conflict of 

interest’ prior to the commencement of each audit assignment.  All 
auditors are required to sign an annual declaration of interest to ensure 
that the allocation of audit work avoids conflict of interest. Auditors who 
undertake any consultancy work will be prohibited from auditing those 
areas. Where possible, audits are rotated within the team to avoid over-
familiarity and complacency. 

 

114



APPENDIX C 
 

7.3 In any circumstances where a potential conflict of interest were to arise 
this would be reported and, where applicable, appropriate arrangements 
approved by the Head of Finance to avoid any compromise of internal 
audit independence.  

 
8. STATUS OF INTERNAL AUDIT IN THE COUNCIL 
 
8.1 Internal Audit has direct access to senior management, the Audit & 

Standards Committee, the Chief Executive and the Chair of the Audit & 
Standards Committee. The Head of Finance and the Audit & Standards 
Committee will jointly agree the level of Internal Audit resource to be 
deployed at the Council. The Internal Audit Manager will communicate and 
interact directly with senior management and the Audit & Standards 
Committee, including between meetings as appropriate. Outside of formal 
senior management meetings and meetings of the Audit & Standards 
Committee, the Internal Audit Manager will have unrestricted access to the 
Chief Executive and to the Chair of the Audit & Standards Committee. 

 
8.2 For the purposes of the Internal Audit activity, the following groups are 

defined: 
 

Audit & Standards Committee  
 
The Audit & Standards Committee is responsible for overseeing the 
effectiveness of the internal audit function, and holding the Internal Audit 
Manager to account for delivery, through the receipt of regular updates and 
reports. The Audit & Standards Committee is responsible for the 
effectiveness of the governance, risk and control environment within the 
Council, holding managers to account for delivery.  The Audit & Standards 
Committee is also responsible for the overall operation of the Internal Audit 
function, including: 
 

• Resourcing and financial performance 
• Performance indicators measuring operational effectiveness 
• The overall strategic direction of the service. 

 
Senior Management 
 
The Council’s senior management team is responsible for helping shape 
the programme of assurance work through an analysis and review of key 
risks to achieving the Council’s objectives and priorities. Senior 
management provides leadership and direction for the Council.  
 

8.3 For line management purposes, the Internal Audit Manager reports to the 
Head of Finance who approves all decisions regarding the performance 

115



APPENDIX C 
 

evaluation, appointment, or removal of the Internal Audit Manager, in 
consultation with the Corporate Management Team.  
 

8.4 The day to day operational management of the Internal Audit function lies 
with the Internal Audit Manager, who is accountable through the Head of 
Finance to the Audit & Standards Committee for standards of performance 
and the proper discharge of the audit function. 
 

8.5 The Internal Audit Manager is responsible for the preparation of the Annual 
Audit Plan, agreeing it with Councillors and the effective implementation of 
the Audit Plan.  Prior to drawing up the Audit Plan, the Internal Audit 
Manager will consult with Heads of Service and Corporate Management 
Team with regard to risks, concerns etc. and take account of any issues 
raised by them.  

 
9. AUTHORITY AND ACCESS FOR INTERNAL AUDIT WORK 
 
9.1. Internal Audit, with strict regard to confidentiality and safeguarding records 

and information, is authorised full, free and unrestricted access to any and 
all Council records (paper and computerised), physical properties, IT 
systems and personnel pertinent to carrying out any engagement.  Such 
access will be granted on demand and need not be subject to prior notice.  
However, Internal Audit will endeavour to give adequate and reasonable 
notice, where possible, when working on routine audit reviews. 

 
9.2 Internal Audit also has free and unrestricted access to the Audit & 

Standards Committee and senior management. Internal Audit examines 
and evaluates, on a risk focussed basis, the whole system of controls 
established by management, not just the controls over financial accounting 
and reporting, but all operational and management controls.   

 
10. SCOPE 
 
10.1 The scope of Internal Audit work encompasses but is not restricted to the 

following: - 
 

• the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of financial, 
operational and management control and their operation in practice 
in relation to the Council’s defined goals and objectives; 

 
• the extent of compliance with, relevance of, and financial effect of, 

policies, strategies, standards, plans and procedures established by 
the Council and the extent of compliance with external laws and 
regulations; 

 

116



APPENDIX C 
 

• the extent to which the assets and interests are acquired, 
accounted for and safeguarded from losses of all kinds arising from 
waste, extravagance, inefficient administration, poor value for 
money, fraud or other cause; 

 
• the suitability, reliability and integrity of financial and other 

management information and the means used to identify, measure, 
classify and report such information; 

 
• the integrity of processes and systems, including those under 

development, to ensure that controls offer adequate protection 
against error, fraud and loss of all kinds; and that the process aligns 
with the Council’s strategic aims; 

 
• the suitability of the organisation of the areas audited for carrying 

out their function, to ensure that services are provided in a way 
which is economical, efficient and effective; 

 
• the follow-up actions taken to implement recommendations made 

and remedy weaknesses identified by Internal Audit, ensuring that 
good practice is identified and widely communicated; 

 
• the operation of the Council’s corporate governance and risk 

management arrangements. 
 
10.2 Internal Audit may undertake consultancy activity (additional activity 

requested by management) where it has the necessary skills and 
resources to do this, and this will be determined by the Internal Audit 
Manager in consultation with the Head of Finance on a case by case 
basis. 

 
11. PLANNING AND REPORTING 
 
11.1 A risk based approach is adopted in planning the work of the audit 

function. This involves a needs and risk assessment of all the activities 
carried out by the Council from which an Annual Plan is prepared.  The 
type of audits covered include: - 

 
• Key financial systems reviews 
• Systems/Operational Reviews – either high level assurance or full 

scope detailed reviews. 
• Proactive Anti-fraud work and fraud investigations 
• Specialist Audits (for example contract/computer/major projects) 
• Corporate governance support work 
• Audit Advice 
• Staff training and promotion of awareness. 

117



APPENDIX C 
 

 
11.2 The Internal Audit Manager submits to Councillors for approval an Annual 

Internal Audit Plan, setting out the recommended scope of audit work in 
the period based upon risk assessment criteria. The Annual Plan is 
developed with reference to a longer term strategic outlook for Internal 
Audit work for the three year period, prepared in conjunction with 
management.  The Audit Plan is a dynamic document, which is flexible 
and reactive to situations arising during the course of the period covered 
and hence may be subject to review and revision during the year. 

 
11.3 In determining the Annual Internal Audit Plan and coverage, the Internal 

Audit Manager takes into account several factors including the Council’s 
risk management arrangements and other assurance and monitoring 
arrangements for achieving the Council’s objectives. The allocation of 
resources is based upon the relative knowledge, skills, experience and 
any specialisms that may be required. The Internal Audit Manager can 
also draw upon other parties to deliver internal work for example to meet 
“in-house” shortfalls arising from sickness, vacancies or to provide a 
particular specialism. If the Internal Audit Manager considers that the audit 
resources available in any way limit the scope of Internal Audit or 
prejudice the ability of Internal Audit to deliver a service consistent with the 
standards expected, then those charged with the governance of the 
Council would be advised accordingly. 

 
11.4. Internal Audit carry out the work, as agreed, report upon the outcome and 

findings, and make appropriate recommendations on the action to be 
taken as a result. Services response will include a timetable for anticipated 
completion of action to be taken. The reporting arrangements will include 
both individual and composite reports to Heads of Service and the 
Corporate Management Team and where appropriate to the Audit & 
Standards Committee, at the agreed intervals. 

 
11.5 Internal Audit is responsible for appropriate follow up on engagement 

findings and recommendations and will report to the Audit & Standards 
Committee on the results. 

 
11.6 Internal Audit will report to the Audit & Standards Committee, in 

accordance with the agreed arrangements, on the overall adequacy of the 
internal control system and major findings, recommendations and 
management actions.  Any significant deviation from the approved Audit 
Plan will be communicated through the periodic activity reporting process. 

 
11.7 Based upon its work, Internal Audit is responsible for reporting significant 

risk exposures and control issues identified to the Audit & Standards 
Committee and to the Corporate Management Team, including fraud risks, 
governance issues, and other matters needed or requested by these 

118



APPENDIX C 
 

bodies.  This ensures that Internal Audit plays a key role in providing 
assurance to the Audit & Standards Committee and the Corporate 
Management Team on the effectiveness of the entire control environment. 

 
12. FRAUD 
 
12.1 Internal Audit does not have responsibility for the prevention or detection 

of fraud and corruption. However, internal auditors should be alert in all 
their work to risks and exposures that could allow fraud and corruption to 
take place and to any indicators that fraud and corruption may have 
occurred. Audit procedures alone, even when performed with due 
professional care, cannot guarantee that fraud or corruption will be 
detected. 

 
12.2 It is individual service areas responsibility to consider the risk and impact 

of fraud and to design and implement suitable safeguards to mitigate 
these risks. The role of Internal Audit in relation to countering fraud is to 
support services in minimising fraud-related risk. It does this in several 
ways including: 

 
• Developing and reviewing the Council’s Anti-Fraud & Corruption 

Strategy. 
• Maintaining a Fraud Response Plan. 
• Financial Regulations requiring all incidents of suspected or detected 

fraud to be notified to the Internal Audit Manager. 
• Developing and maintaining data and intelligence networks with 

appropriate bodies including the Cabinet Office (NFI), Police, other 
Local Authorities and Government agencies. 

 
 Internal Audit also aims to provide anti-fraud awareness training and 

guidelines to staff. 
 

12.3 Once any suspected or detected fraud has been notified to the Internal 
Audit Manager, the appropriate course of action will be discussed with the 
Head of Finance and a decision taken as to who should lead any 
subsequent investigation, whether it is Internal Audit or service 
management, and whether to report to the police. 

 
13. PERIODIC ASSESSMENT 
 
13.1 Internal Audit will, in conjunction with the Audit & Standards Committee, 

provide regular reports on its performance and effectiveness drawing upon 
both quantitative and qualitative measures including feedback from clients, 
adherence to professional standards and through the opinion of the 
external auditors. Furthermore, there will be mechanisms for quality 
control/continuous improvement in service delivery through such 

119



APPENDIX C 
 

measures including internal self-assessments, peer reviews and 
independent external assessment, the latter to be conducted at least every 
five years. 

 
14. RESPONSIBILITIES OF CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM AND 

HEADS OF SERVICE. 
 
14.1 The Councils Corporate Management team and Heads of Service have 

responsibility for determining the scope of Internal Audit work, in relation to 
relevant professional standards / guidelines, and for deciding the action to 
be taken on the outcome of, or findings from, their work. 

 
14.2 They also have a responsibility to ensure that the Internal Audit function 

has: - 
• the support of management, 
• adequate resources; and 
• direct access and freedom to report to senior management and 

Councillors, including the Head of Finance, Monitoring Officer, Chief 
Executive and Cabinet / the relevant Committee. 

 
14.3 The Corporate Management Team and Heads of Service also have 

primary responsibility for establishing and maintaining a proper and 
effective control environment and for managing risk, including proper 
accounting records and other management information for running the 
Council. In addition there is also a primary responsibility for the prevention 
and detection of fraud, including the prompt reporting to all relevant parties 
of any evidence or reasonable suspicion of an irregularity. 

 
14.4 During the course of an audit, Heads of Service and their staff will be 

required to co-operate fully with the auditor's requirements, including the 
completion of action plans, signing off of reports and the timely 
implementation of specific and agreed recommendations made by Internal 
Audit. 

 
15. RELATIONSHIP WITH THE EXTERNAL AUDITORS / OTHER 

REGULATORY BODIES 
 

15.1 Internal Audit will consult and where appropriate work closely with others, 
particularly the external auditors, to minimise areas of duplication and to 
maximise the value obtained from the total audit resource. However, the 
work of Internal Audit will not be driven by external audit’s own priorities. 

 
Sarah Marsh – Internal Audit Manager 
March 2017 
(Date of next review: March 2018) 

120



APPENDIX D 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Knowledge and skills analysis for Harlow Audit Committee Members (March 2017) 

Audit Committee members bring a range of knowledge and experiences that helps it perform 
collectively as a committee. This analysis will help evaluate the overall knowledge and skills of 
the Audit Committee and is based on the CIPFA 2013 Audit Committees practical guidance for 
Local Authorities and Police. 

For each area please indicate your current knowledge/skills level.  

NAME: (optional) 
Knowledge 
area 

Detail Confident Aware Development 
appreciated 

Core areas of knowledge 
Council 
knowledge 

Governance structures of the 
Council and decision-making 
processes. Council objectives and 
major functions. 

   

Audit 
Committee role 
and function 

Understanding of the audit 
committee’s role and place within 
the governance structures. 
Knowledge of the purpose and role 
of the audit committee 

   

Governance Knowledge of the six principles of 
CIPFA/SOLACE Good Governance 
Framework and the requirements of 
the Annual Governance Statement. 

   

Internal Audit Awareness of the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards and 
arrangements for delivering the 
internal audit service. 

   

Financial 
management 
and accounting 

Awareness of the financial 
statements that a local authority 
must produce. Understanding of 
good financial management 
principles and the role of the chief 
financial officer’ 

   

External Audit Knowledge of the role and function 
of the external auditor and the key 
reports and assurances that they 
provide. 

   

Risk 
Management 

Understanding of the principles of 
risk management and how they are 
applied within the Council. 

   

Anti-fraud Knowledge of the principles of good 
fraud risk management and the 
Council’s arrangements for tackling 
fraud. 

   

Values of good 
governance 

Knowledge of the Seven principles 
of Public Life, the Council’s 

   

121



APPENDIX D 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

arrangements to uphold ethical 
standards for both members and 
staff and the Council’s 
whistleblowing arrangements..  

Range of specialisms that adds value to the Audit Committee 
Knowledge 
area 

Details of supplementary 
knowledge 

Skilled Novice Nil 

Accountancy Qualification in accountancy    

Internal Audit Qualification or experience within 
internal audit  

   

Risk 
management 

Qualification or practical experience 
of applying risk management 

   

Governance 
and legal 

Legal qualification or knowledge of 
specific areas of interest e.g. 
constitutional arrangements, data 
protection or contract law 

   

Service 
knowledge 
relevant to the 
functions of the 
Council 

Direct experience of managing or 
working in a service area similar to 
that operated by the Council.  

   

Please give details    

Programme 
and project 
management 

Project management qualifications 
or practical knowledge of project 
management principles 

   

IT systems and 
IT governance 

Knowledge gained from 
management or development work 
in IT. 

   

 

Please add here any other areas of expertise 
you bring to the committee not covered above. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Other comments or feedback are welcome.  
 

Please return this form to the Internal Audit Manager sarah.marsh@harlow.gov.uk by <Insert 
date>. Alternatively it can be posted to Sarah Marsh, Internal Audit Manager, Harlow District 
Council, The Water Gardens, Harlow, CM20 1WG. 

An anonymised summary will be presented at the June 2017 Audit and Standards Committee 
meeting. 

122

mailto:sarah.marsh@harlow.gov.uk


REPORT TO: AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

DATE: 8 MARCH 2017 
 

TITLE: RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT  
 

LEAD OFFICER(S): 
 

SIMON FREEMAN, HEAD OF FINANCE 
(01279) 446228 

 
RECOMMENDED that: 
 
A The Committee reviews the Corporate Risk Register and specifically CR05 as 

set out in the report. 
 
BACKGROUND 

1.  The Audit and Standards Committee’s terms of reference includes the 
responsibility to monitor the effective development and operation of risk 
management in the Council.  

2.  The Council’s Risk Management Strategy, previously agreed by the 
Committee, states that the responsibility of the Audit and Standards 
Committee is to understand, scrutinise, and endorse the Council’s Risk 
Management Strategy and monitor the Council’s risk appetite. 

CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 
 
3.  To help facilitate the understanding of the Council’s key risks at any given 

point in time, the Corporate Risk Register is reported to each Audit and 
Standards Committee meeting for scrutiny and challenge. 
 

4.  The Corporate Risk Register continues to be reviewed on at least a quarterly 
basis by CMT/HoS, who also continue to monitor any cross cutting or 
strategic risks contained in service plans. 
 

5.  The Corporate Risk Register format is now incorporated into the new service 
planning and risk management system InPhase. This database will also hold 
the Corporate Risk Register and ensure linkages with operational risks 
corporate objectives and performance management information.  
 

SUMMARY OF KEY RISKS 
 
6.  The Corporate Risk Register relates to key and cross cutting corporate issues 

and strategic risks contained in service plans. Corporate or service level risks 
scoring 18 or higher are reported to CMT/HoS and are identified in the 
Corporate Risk Register attached at Appendix A. 
 

123

Agenda Item 14



7.  Risks scoring 20 or higher will be reported to Cabinet at its meeting on 23 
March 2017 as part of the regular Joint Finance and Performance Report 
(JFPR). 
 

ISSUES/PROPOSALS 
 
8.  It has been agreed for the Audit and Standards Committee to focus on one or 

two key risks at each of their meetings, which is in line with good practice 
ensuring all risks are covered within an acceptable cycle of meetings. 
 

9.  To date the Audit & Standards Committee has reviewed: 
 

(i) CR01 (sustainable budget) and CR03 (housing mix) at its November 
2015 meeting. 
 

(ii) CR06 (clean and green environment) at its March 2016 meeting. 
 
(iii) CR02 (the Harlow Offer) at its September 2016 meeting. 

 
(iv) CR04 (Lack of adequate Council Housing) at its November 2016 

meeting. 
 

10.  It is proposed the Committee examines CR05 Inability to fulfil Community 
Leadership role. The narrative from the risk register for CR05 is presented in 
Appendix B. 
 

11.  The Corporate Risk Register continues to be scrutinised on a regular basis 
by CMT/HoS and provides a mechanism for Committee challenge by 
presenting an update at each meeting. 
 

 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Place (includes Sustainability) 
None specific. 
Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Place 
 
Finance (Includes ICT) 
Any specific implications are set out in the report. 
Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance  
 
Housing 
None specific. 
Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 
 

124



Community Wellbeing (includes Equalities and Social Inclusion) 
None specific. 
Author: Jane Greer, Head of Community Wellbeing 
 
Governance (includes HR) 
Risk Management is an important part of the council’s overall governance 
arrangements and this is why the Audit and Standards Committee needs to 
consider the adequacy of overall arrangements on a regular basis. 
Author: Brian Keane, Head of Governance 
 
Background Papers 
 
Corporate and service risk registers 
 
Risk Management Strategy and Toolkit 
 
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used 
 
CMT – Corporate Management Team. 
HoS – Heads of Service. 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Corporate Risks Summary Quarter 3 
 
Appendix B – CR05 Corporate Risk Register 
 
 
 

125



CR01 - Financial resilience
IF : If a sustainable budget is not secured
THEN : Then the Council will lack financial resilience
BACKGROUND : The Government's fiscal policy in respect of deficit reduction reducing public sector funding combined with the Council's limited ability to raise income could result in the 

Council's financial resilience being at risk. 

Freeman, 
Simon Likely (4) Major (4)

Development of the 
Council's MTFS and the 
detailed planning of 
future budgets is now 
undertaken early in the 
financial year and is an 
ongoing process rather 
than an annual review 
and is linked with the 
monthly Budget 
Monitoring process. 
However, for the period 
of the MTFS there are 
substantial budget 
reductions required to 
meet the Government's 
funding cuts which may 
impact on deliverablility 
of a sustainable budget 
in the medium term.

Likely (4) Major (4) 21 Likely (4) Moderate
(3) 17

Whilst the pressures 
generated in the 
Council's grant income 
are largely driven by 
Government policy the 
financial situation 
continues to be 
monitored at a high 
frequency. The 
Administration will 
continue to be provided 
with detailed financial 
information and will be 
appropriately supported 
in reaching decisions 
upon how these financial 
challenges can be faced.

31/12/2016

CR02 - The Harlow Offer
IF : If the Harlow Offer is poor
THEN : Then the town will fail to attract new or retain current businesses
BACKGROUND : A lack of private sector investment and/or disinvestment by retailers and landowners in the Town Centre could lead to a further decline in its attractiveness as a shopping and

leisure destination. The Harlow Offer is key to retaining and attracting new investment in to the town 

Greer, 
Jane Likely (4) Major (4)

Infrastructure plan (incl 
M11/J7A). Town centre 
improvements. Housing 
mix. Enterprise Zone 
delivery lead. Economic 
Development Strategy 
(currently being drafted) 

Moderate
(3) Major (4) 18 Moderate

(3)
Moderate

(3) 13

Continued work with 
ECC to deliver road and 
transport infrastructure 
improvements. Develop 
forward plan for 
improving transport 
infrastructure in Harlow. 
Take forward EZ skills 
plan to support 
development of a skilled 
workforce, Templefields 
public realm 
improvement initiatives 

31/12/2016

CR03 - Lack of Suitable Housing Mix
IF : If the town lacks a suitable housing mix 
THEN : Then it will not attract or retain residents
BACKGROUND : The town requires a suitable housing mix to attract new and retain existing residents for an evolving and sustainable community. Supply must be balanced with demand and 

housing need, taking into account National Housing and Planning policies. As part of that mix, housing for local people that is genuinely affordable remains a high priority for the Council. 

Bloomer, 
Graeme Likely (4) Major (4)

Duty to cooperate 
discussions. Housing 
studies including joint 
ones to support the Local
Plan. 

Likely (4) Major (4) 21 Moderate
(3) Major (4) 18 Implement Local 

Development Plan 31/12/2016

Risk Owner Inherent 
Likelihood

Inherent 
Impact Controls Already in Place Residual 

Likelihood
Residual 
Impact

Residual 
Risk Score

Residual 
Risk 
Indicator

DoT Foreseeable 
Likelihood

Foreseeable 
Impact

Foreseeable 
Risk Score

Additional actions to 
mitigate risk

Last 
Reviewed

126

adam.rees
Text Box
APPENDIX A

adam.rees
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by adam.rees

adam.rees
Sticky Note
Accepted set by adam.rees



CR04 - Lack of adequate Council housing
IF : If the Council does not provide adequate Council Housing it will not be able to fulfil housing needs.
THEN : If the Council does not provide adequate Council Housing it will not be able to fulfil housing needs.
BACKGROUND : Investment in the existing Council Housing stock is required to fulfil housing needs, maintain Decent Homes standards and improve housing conditions and Housing Options for 

tenants. 

Murray, 
Andrew

Moderate 
(3)

Moderate 
(3)

Pathfinder Project, 
Priority Estates schemes 
(which includes provision 
for re-housing within 
Housing Association 
properties). Modern 
Homes (Housing 
Investment) programme, 
Asset Management 
Strategy, Tenancy 
Strategy, Allocations 
Policy, Homelessness 
Strategy, Tenant and 
Leaseholder 
Engagement Strategy 

Likely (4) Moderate 
(3) 17 Moderate

(3)
Moderate

(3) 13

Consult on preferred 
options for housing 
growth in LDP, actions 
from Tenant Satisfaction 
Surveys and Landlord 
Survey, re-let repairs and 
maintenance contract 
(2017). Continuation of 
planning and modelling 
of HRA business plan. 

31/12/2016

CR05 - Inability to fulfill Community Leadership role
IF : If the Council is unable to fulfil its community leadership role
THEN : Then partnering and strategic opportunities may be lost, impacting on strategic plans and the future of discretionary services
BACKGROUND : Discretionary services are dependent upon the Council's community leadership role which relies to some extent on co-production and co-operation of other agencies and 

organisations 

Greer, 
Jane

Moderate 
(3) Major (4)

Harlow Wellbeing 
Strategy, Safer Harlow 
Partnership

Moderate
(3) Major (4) 18 Moderate

(3)
Moderate

(3) 13

Crime and anti=social 
behaviour partnerships. 
Communications Plan 
(e.g. to tackle 
perceptions). Review of 
financial sustainability 
and delivery models of 
discretionary services. 

31/12/2016

CR06 - Lack of Resources and Capacity, Council and key partners
IF : If the resources and capacity of the Council and key partners are diminished
THEN : Then the Council may not be able to fulfil its community aspirations
BACKGROUND : Tension between expectations of residents, priorities and resources available for street cleaning, waste & recycling, unadopted highways maintenance & landscaping requires 

careful prioritisation and management of expectations 

Bloomer, 
Graeme

Moderate 
(3) Major (4)

Essex Waste 
Management Plan, 
Waste Collection 
Contract, Street Scene 
‘contract’ with HTS, 
Landscapes ‘contract’ 
with HTS, Town Park 
regeneration project, 
NEPP.

Moderate
(3) Major (4) 18 Likely (4) Major (4) 21

Implement Community 
Engagement Strategy, 
actions from resident 
satisfaction surveys and 
budget survey, increase 
transparency, 
Communications 
Strategy, (Continue 
review of scope and 
spec of services).

31/12/2016

CR07 - Ability to support childrenand family aspirations
IF : If we are unable to support children and young people's (and their families) aspirations
THEN : Then this will adversely impact the skills and educational attainment of school leavers
BACKGROUND : Engagement of young people (and their families) and opportunities for all in education employment and the community will provide opportunities to raise aspirations and the

current low skill base 

Risk Owner Inherent 
Likelihood

Inherent 
Impact Controls Already in Place Residual 

Likelihood
Residual 
Impact

Residual 
Risk Score

Residual 
Risk 
Indicator

DoT Foreseeable 
Likelihood

Foreseeable 
Impact

Foreseeable 
Risk Score

Additional actions to 
mitigate risk

Last 
Reviewed

127



Greer, 
Jane

Moderate 
(3)

Moderate 
(3)

Strategic Partnership 
chaired by Chief Exec, 
Signposting for residents 
(often through ECC), 
Partner agencies 
(statutory, voluntary, 
schools), promotion of 
and support to UTC and 
ARU , Youth Council, 
Harlow School 
Readiness project

Unlikely (2) Moderate 
(3) 9 Unlikely (2) Moderate

(3) 9

Support creation and 
development of 
apprenticeships for 
young people in Local 
Plan and Procurement 
Policy, Engage with a 
range of partners to 
support families with 
complex needs, The 
Harlow School 
Readiness project has 
been extended across 
town

31/12/2016

Risk Owner Inherent 
Likelihood

Inherent 
Impact Controls Already in Place Residual 

Likelihood
Residual 
Impact

Residual 
Risk Score

Residual 
Risk 
Indicator

DoT Foreseeable 
Likelihood

Foreseeable 
Impact

Foreseeable 
Risk Score

Additional actions to 
mitigate risk

Last 
Reviewed

128



CR05 - Inability to fulfill Community Leadership role
Risk Owner: Greer, Jane
Position: Head of Community Wellbeing

31/12/2016 � CP6 - Being the community leader Annually 31/03/2017

Last 
Reviewed

This risk impacts upon Major Review 
Frequency

Next Major 
Review Date

If the Council is unable to fulfil its 
community leadership role

Then partnering and strategic 
opportunities may be lost, 
impacting on strategic plans and 
the future of discretionary services 

Discretionary services are dependent upon the Council's community leadership 
role which relies to some extent on co-production and co-operation of other 
agencies and organisations 

If Then Background

Moderate (3) Health and wellbeing of the community could be affected 
due to inability to bring together partners and agencies to 
deliver adequate services. Discretionary services budget 
likely to be restricted or removed. 

Inherent 
Likelihood

Likelihood Comment

Major (4) Residents unable to access adequate services. 
Frustration of community cohesion. Perception of Harlow 
Offer could deteriorate. 

Inherent 
Impact

Impact Comment

Harlow Wellbeing Strategy, Safer Harlow Partnership
Current Controls

Risk Rating 18 13

Risk Likelihood Moderate (3) Moderate (3)

Risk Impact Major (4) Moderate (3)

Residual Risk DoT Foreseeable Risk
Crime and anti-social behaviour partnerships. Communications Plan (e.g. 
to tackle perceptions). Review of financial sustainability and delivery 
models of discretionary services.

Additional actions to mitigate risk

129

adam.rees
Text Box
APPENDIX B


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Matters Arising
	7 Committee Work Plan and Training Programme 2017/18
	8 Harlow Council Audit Plan 2016-17
	9 Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report 2015-16
	10 Review of Audit & Standards Committee Terms of Reference
	Appendix A - 2013 CIPFA model terms of reference
	Appendix B - Committee’s revised terms of reference

	11 External Quality Assurance of Internal Audit Against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
	Appendix A - External Quality Assessment full report
	                                  �                                      �Broxbourne, Epping Forest and Harlow District Councils �Internal Audit Shared Service��External Quality Assessment�November 2016
	Purpose of assignment
	Executive summary
	              Basis for EQA
	Grading of recommendations
	��Summary of good practice identified within EQA�
	��Resources �Business Vision and Mission, Governance arrangements, Recognition of standards, Guidance, Procedures and Supervision, Terms of Engagement, Ethics and business conduct.�
	Competency�Charter, Internal Audit Manual, Planning and Allocation of staffing, Recruitment (Numbers and skills), Training (Professional and Technical), Appraisal and Development�
	�����Delivery �Client engagement and relationship, Directed led service, Terms of Engagement (Audit/Assignment Brief), Discussion of assurance and advisory opinions, Reporting at assignment and strategic levels
	�����Delivery �Client engagement and relationship, Directed led service, Terms of Engagement (Audit/Assignment Brief), Discussion of assurance and advisory opinions, Reporting at assignment and strategic levels
	Delivery continued
	Delivery continued
	Delivery continued
	Delivery continued
	Summary Audit Committee feedback
	                   Overall assessment
	Benchmarking �Sector analysis
	Benchmarking �Industry analysis
	Key PSIAS Standards assessed�(for benchmarking purposes)
	Conclusion 
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


	12 Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2017/18
	Core principles:
	Appendix A - Harlow Council Internal Audit Three Year Plan 2017/18 to 19/20

	13 Internal Audit Activity Report
	Appendix A - Audit Plan Monitoring
	16 17 P11

	Appendix B - Audit Recommendations Tracker
	Appendix C - Internal Audit Charter
	Appendix D - Knowledge and skills analysis for Harlow Audit Committee Members

	14 Risk Management Progress Report
	Appendix A - Corporate Risks Summary Quarter 3
	Appendix B - CR05 Corporate Risk Register




